MISSISSIPPI BAIL PROCEDURES MANUAL

By MISISSIPPI COALITION OF LIMITED SURETIES, INC.

(https://www.mcols.com

January 2024 Edition

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	4
SECTION 1: WHAT ARE THE REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTING A BOND?	5
SECTION 2: WHAT HAPPENS WHEN A BOND IS FORFEITED?	7
SECTION 3: WHAT HAPPENS WHEN A DEFENDANT JUMPS BOND?	10
SECTION 4: HOW DOES A BOND BECOME DISCHARGED?	11
SECTION 5: MS Code (Section 83-39) – Bail Bonds & Bondsmen	
§ 83-39-1 – Definitions	
§ 83-39-3 – Individual license required	
§ 83-39-7 – Qualification bond; return of Defendant out on bond	16
§ 83-39-8 – Transfer of qualification bond	17
§ 83-39-9 – Issuance of license	18
§ 83-39-11 – License fees	18
§ 83-39-13 – Annual reports required	18
§ 83-39-15 – Grounds for denial, suspension, revocation, and refusal to renew license	19
§ 83-39-17 – Hearing	20
§ 83-39-19 – Appeals	20
§ 83-39-21 – Judicial proceeding in lieu of departmental hearing	20
§ 83-39-23 – Notice to sheriff and judicial officials	21
§ 83-39-25 – Maximum premium, commission or fee; processing fee; holding collateral to insure payment or indemnify for losses	•
§ 83-39-27 – Prohibited activities	22
§ 83-39-29 – Penalties	22
§ 83-39-30 – Payment to inmates and their jailers prohibited	23
§ 83-39-31 – Fee on appearance bonds and recognizances; additional assessment on bail bonds to be dep victims of domestic violence fund	
SECTION 6: MS Code (Section 99-5) – Bail	
§ 99-5-1 – Form of bail; professional and Soliciting Bail Agents to provide certain additional information; p	enalties 26
§ 99-5-3 – Form of bail; taken in open court by entry on minutes	27
§ 99-5-5 – Bonds to be made payable to state; effect; expiration and renewal	
§ 99-5-7 – Fidelity or Surety insurance company may give bail	
§ 99-5-9 – Cash bail bond	
§ 99-5-11 – Justices of the peace may take recognizance or bond; certificate of default; alias warrant	
§ 99-5-13 – Court may require additional bail	
§ 99-5-15 – Duty of officer to release Defendant from custody; approval of sureties	
§ 99-5-17 – Sheriff to return bail-bond to clerk	

§ 99-5-19 – Person who takes insufficient bail-bond, etc., to stand special bail	. 29
§ 99-5-21 – Bond good though it does not describe offense	. 29
§ 99-5-23 – Bonds, recognizances, etc., to be valid and binding whether or not properly taken or recited in return of officer	
§ 99-5-25 – Forfeiture of bond; scire facias	.30
§ 99-5-27 – Sureties may arrest and surrender principal; return of Defendant out on bond	.31
§ 99-5-29 – Surety may cause arrest of principal by officer	. 32
§ 99-5-31 – Mittimus in bailable cases to fix the bail	.32
§ 99-5-33 – Accused committed to prison if injured party is dangerously wounded	.32
§ 99-5-35 – When prisoner charged with capital offense entitled to bail	.32
§ 99-5-37 – Domestic violence or knowing violation of domestic abuse protective order; required appearance before judge; considerations; conditions	
§ 99-5-39 – Appearance bond as condition of probation, community control, payment plan, or other court ordered supervision	.33
SECTION 7: MS Code (Section 21-23-8) – Municipal Bond Forfeitures	34
§ 21-23-8 Municipality bond forfeitures	.34
Appendix I: COURT DOCUMENTS	
Appendix II – BAIL DOCUMENTS	
Appendix III – POWERS OF ATTORNEY	56

INTRODUCTION

This guide has been prepared in order to help clarify issues and statutes related to the bail bond system in Mississippi. Bail agents, court clerks, or any other person involved in the bail bond system should use this guide to ensure the proper operation of the system – particularly in the case of a defendant failing to appear.

Because the laws related to bail bonds were often confusing or vague in the past, the Mississippi Legislature has taken steps in recent years to clarify the statutes governing the bail bond system. This guide provides step-by-step instructions related to bail forfeitures and provides all current Mississippi statutes related to bail bond system.

Click **HERE** to view the full Mississippi Code of 1972.

We hope that this guide proves to be a valuable asset for the day-to-day operations of the bail bond system for all parties involved. Please let us know if you have further questions or suggestions about information you would like to see included in future editions of the guide.

The Mississippi Coalition of Limited Sureties, Inc.

MCOLS Mission

MCOLS is dedicated to limited surety bail. We pledge to fight for the growth and continuation of surety bail in Mississippi. We promise to provide professional bail agents with the knowledge and skills necessary to meet the responsibilities and challenges of bail industry careers with P.R.I.D.E. (Professionalism, Respect, Integrity, Dignity, & Excellence). Additionally, we strive to provide quality educational opportunities so that bail agents can meet state licensing requirements. We also track legislative trends affecting the bail industry in Mississippi and serve as an advocate for our member agents.

SECTION 1: WHAT ARE THE REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTING A BOND?

- 1. Any person who executes or delivers a bail bond must hold a valid license from the Mississippi Insurance Department (MID).
- 2. Bond forms must have the following information preprinted or stamped clearly and legibly on them. The Court should issue an order to the Sheriff and all bail agents who write bonds within that Court regarding this requirement.
 - Professional Bail Agent's full name
 - Professional Bail Agent's MID license number
 - Professional Bail Agent's legal address
 - Professional Bail Agent's phone number

Additionally, if a bond is posted by a Limited Surety Professional Bail Agent, the following information must also be preprinted or stamped clearly and legibly on the bond form:

- Insurer's name
- Insurer's legal address on file with MID
- Insurer's phone number

A copy of an Individual Power of Attorney authorizing the agent to post the bond must also be attached to all bonds.

If the bond is taken from a Soliciting Bail Agent, the full name of the Soliciting Bail Agent and the license number of such agent must be preprinted or stamped clearly and legibly. In such a case, the bond form must also include all information required for a Professional Bail Agent along with a true and correct copy of an Individual Power of Attorney authorizing such Soliciting Bail Agent to sign the name of the Professional Bail Agent.

A person licensed as Soliciting Bail Agent has no liability to pay the Court any money. The responsible party is the Professional Bail Agent or the Insurer.

Mississippi Insurance Department

MID's website provides a number of valuable resources for those involved in the bail bond system.

Click <u>HERE</u> to go directly to the MID Bail Agent Licensing site.

Anyone needing to verify a bail agent or surety's license may use the MID Licensing Search system found **HERE**.

You may also contact the MID directly at:

Licensing Number: (601) 359–3582

For General Inquiries: info@mid.ms.gov

3. Soliciting Bail Agents are required to post a Qualifying Power of Attorney providing the agent with authority to sign the Professional Bail Agent's name to the bond. All bonds must be signed in the name of the Professional Bail Agent.

In the absence of a Power of Attorney, the Professional Bail Agent must sign all bonds personally.

The original Qualifying Power of Attorney and copies of the state license of the Professional Bail Agent and the Soliciting Bail Agent should be filed with the Circuit Clerk and attested copies delivered to any other courts of the county.

4. Professional Bail Agents licensed as Limited Surety Agents representing insurance companies must file with the Circuit Clerk a Qualifying Power of Attorney from their Insurer giving them the authority to execute bail bonds. The

original, along with copies of the license, should be filed with the Circuit Clerk (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-7).

- 5. All bail bonds should be signed in the name of the Professional Bail Agent. An Individual Power of Attorney should be attached to every bond giving that agent the authority to execute that bond in a specific amount.
- 6. All bail bonds posted by a Limited Surety Agent or a Bail Soliciting Agent must have an Individual Power of Attorney. If there is no power of attorney attached to a bond written, there is no obligation for the surety to pay.
- 7. Most Individual Powers of Attorney have a maximum allowable amount. Be sure the bond is not posted for more than the maximum printed on the Power of Attorney. Individual Powers of Attorney cannot be stacked in order to exceed the maximum allowable amount. In other words, it is not allowable to use more than one Power of Attorney on a single bond.
- 8. Bail agents generally operate under a trade name. However, when it comes to collecting on bonds, trade names are irrelevant. It is not uncommon in the bonding business for agents to change trade/agency names when they have been or are about to be cut off as a result of forfeitures. This is why it is required that all bail bond paperwork specify the full name and license number of the Professional Bail Agent.
- 9. Some Professional Bail Agents may attempt to operate under one trade name while having one or more of their Soliciting Bail Agents operate under a different trade name. This is also not allowed under current Mississippi law. A Professional Bail Agent may only operate under a single trade name. All Soliciting Bail Agents must operate under the trade name of the Professional Bail Agent (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 83-39-3).

SECTION 2: WHAT HAPPENS WHEN A BOND IS FORFEITED?

FORFEITURE PROCEDURES

- 1. If a Defendant fails to appear for Court, the bond must be forfeited at that time.
- 2. Upon the bond forfeiture, the Judge shall sign a Judgment Nisi to formally forfeit the bond.
- 3. The Clerk should then complete and sign a Scire Facias. The case should then be put on the Court calendar for ninety (90) days from that date (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-25).
- 4. Copies of the Warrant, Judgment Nisi and Scire Facias, along with a certified copy of the bond, should be served or sent by certified mail to the Surety, not the Soliciting Bail Agent nor the Limited Surety Agent. A copy may be given to the agent, but he/she is not responsible for your money.

NOTE: For the purpose of process, the Surety is defined as the Personal Surety Professional Bail Agent or the Insurance Company per MS Code of 1972, Section 83–39–1.

NOTE: If the process sent by certified mail is returned unclaimed twice, it is considered served.

- 5. If the Bail Agent transports the Defendant to Court or if the Defendant is surrendered, the Bail Agent must present to the Court an Order Setting Aside Judgment Nisi. This order must be signed by the Judge in order to remove the judgment from Court records (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-25). A copy of the judgment that is set aside shall be served on the Surety by personal service or certified mail. The Judge may require the Defendant or the Bail Agent to pay any costs related to the service of process.
- 6. If the Bail Agent does not have the Judgment Nisi set aside within ninety (90) days, the Judge should sign a Final Judgment on the forfeiture. However, as per the MS Code of 1972, Section 83-39-7, a Judge may issue an Order Granting Extension of Time to Delay Final Judgment Nisi before issuing a Final Judgment for a valid reason (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-22) upon being petitioned by an Application for Extension of Time.

If the forfeiture is made final, a copy of the final judgment shall be served on the Surety within ten (10) working days by either personal service or certified mail. The case should again be placed upon the calendar for ninety (90) days from that date.

NOTE: Do not send the Scire Facias, Judgment Nisi, or Final Judgment, to the Mississippi Insurance Department. The only document which should be sent to the MID is a Revocation Order.

7. If the Bail Agent transports the Defendant to Court or if the Defendant is surrendered, the Bail Agent must present to the Court an Order Setting Aside Judgment Nisi and Final Judgment. This order must be signed by the Judge in order to remove said judgment from Court records. The Judge may require the Defendant or the Bail Agent to pay any costs related to the service of process.

- 8. If the Bail Agent is unable to produce the Defendant and pays the forfeiture to the Court as a result, the judgment must still be set aside with an Order Satisfying and Canceling Final Judgment Nisi. This order must be signed by the Judge in order to remove said judgment from Court records.
- 9. The Bail Agent must satisfy the bond prior to the ninetieth (90th) day of the Final Judgment in one of the following ways:
 - The Defendant is returned to the Court
 - The Defendant is surrendered in Court or to jail
 - The Defendant is being held in jail in another jurisdiction with a hold order
 - The bond is paid

REVOCATION PROCEDURES

- 10. A Revocation Order should be signed by the Judge if the Final Judgement has not been aside by the ninety-first (91st) day of said Final Judgement.
- 11. If the Revocation Order is on a Professional Bail Agent licensed as a Personal Surety Agent, it should be to revoke the Qualification Bond and License of the Professional Bail Agent and all his/her agents.
- 12. If the Revocation Order is on a Professional Bail Agent licensed as a Limited Surety Agent, it should be to revoke the License of the Professional Bail Agent and all his/her agents. The Revocation Order should show the name of the Insurer as well as the name of the Professional Bail Agent.
- 13. The Revocation Order must then be served upon the Commissioner of Insurance.

NOTE: It is helpful to include a copy of the original bail bond, copies of the Scire Facias, Judgment Nisi, Final Judgment, and proof of service with the Revocation Order.

14. Upon the Revocation Order being served upon the Commissioner of Insurance, the Sheriff should be notified by the Court that the Bail Agent will no longer be allowed to post bonds in any Court.

NOTE: When the Revocation Order is issued and a hearing is held, per the MS Code of 1972, Section 83–39–17, the license is suspended until that order is set aside.

- 15. Upon receiving payment of the outstanding bond, the Judgment Nisi, Final Judgment and Revocation Order remain in effect until an Order Setting Aside Judgment Nisi/Final Judgment/Revocation is issued directing the Mississippi Insurance Department to remove the original forfeiture order.
- 16. The Bail Agent is due a remission of the bond if:
 - The Bail Agent has fulfilled payment of the bond AND
 - Within eighteen (18) months of the date of the Final Judgement the Bail Agent has: (1) returned the Defendant to the Court, (2) surrendered the Defendant to the Court or jail, **OR** (3) placed a hold order on the Defendant being held in jail in another jurisdiction (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 83-39-7)

Remission must be made upon presentation to the Court of an Application for Remission of Bond (specifying the proper reason for said remission) along with the Order for Remission of Bond. The Judge may order the Bail Agenthe Defendant to pay any related court costs.	t or

SECTION 3: WHAT HAPPENS WHEN A DEFENDANT JUMPS BOND?

- 1. A Defendant who does not appear in Court may be charged with bond jumping (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 83-39-29). Said Defendant may be so charged by the Court or by the Bail Agent.
- 2. As Bail Agents are not sworn officers of the Court, they are not allowed to serve warrants for bond jumping or any other charge. However, a warrant is not necessary for the Bail Agent to pick up a Defendant who has jumped bond. This is specifically addressed in Mississippi state law (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-27) and by judicial precedent (Taylor v. Taintor, Wall 366).
- 3. The Bail Agent shall receive an attested copy of the bond jumping warrant in order to provide protection of a law enforcement officer in the event of trouble arising from the arrest of the Defendant (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-25).
- 4. Bail Agents are allowed to receive any information available to law enforcement or the courts pertaining to the Defendant for the purpose of safe surrender or for any reasonable cause in order to safely return the Defendant to the custody of law enforcement and the Court (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-27).

NOTE: Such information may include but is not limited to addresses, tag numbers, driver's license numbers, pictures, or any other information to which the Court has access.

SECTION 4: HOW DOES A BOND BECOME DISCHARGED?

- 1. A bail bond is considered discharged or cleared when:
 - The Defendant appears and is found guilty
 - The charge is dismissed or nolle prosequi
 - The charge is retired or remanded to the files
- 2. A bail bond is discharged or cleared when the Defendant is present in Court and either pleads guilty or is found to be guilty and sentence is pronounced.

NOTE: When a Defendant appears before the Court and enters a plea of guilty and the amount of the fine is entered into the Court records, the bond is discharged. A bail bond guarantees the appearance of the defendant only – it does not guarantee the payment of fines or costs (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99–5–25).

- 3. A bail bond is discharged or cleared either when the Defendant is surrendered by the Bail Agent in open Court or to the proper jail or Sheriff (see the MS Code of 1972, Section 99-5-27).
- 4. A bail bond is discharged or cleared when a Defendant is placed on a non-adjudication sentence.

SECTION 5: MS Code (Section 83-39) - Bail Bonds & Bondsmen

MISSISSIPPI CODE of 1972 TITLE 83 CHAPTER 39

BAIL BONDS AND BONDSMAN

SECTION:	
83-39-1	Definitions
83-39-3	Individual License Required
83-39-5	License Requirements
83-39-7	Qualification Bond; return of Defendant out on bond
83-39-8	Transfer of Qualification Bond
83-39-9	Issuance of License
83-39-11	License Fees
83-39-13	Annual reports required
83-39-15	Grounds for denial, suspension, revocation, and refusal to renew license
83-39-17	Hearing
83-39-19	Appeals
83-39-21	Judicial proceedings in lieu of departmental hearing
83-39-23	Notice to sheriff and judicial officials
83-39-25	Maximum premium, commission or fee; processing fee; holding collateral to insure payments of
	premium or indemnify for losses
83-39-27	Prohibited activities
83-39-29	Penalties
83-39-30	Payment to inmates and their jailers prohibited
83-39-31	Fee on appearance bonds and recognizances; additional assessment on bail bonds to be deposited into
	Victims of Domestic Violence Fund

§ 83-39-1 - Definitions

The following terms when used in this section shall have the following meanings:

- 1. Department: the Mississippi Insurance Department.
- 2. Commissioner: the Mississippi Commissioner of Insurance.
- 3. Insurer: any domestic or foreign insurance corporation or association engaged in the business of insurance or suretyship which has qualified to transact surety or casualty business in this state.
- 4. Professional Bail Agent: any individual who shall furnish bail, acting as a licensed personal surety agent or as a licensed limited surety agent representing an insurer as defined by this chapter. The above definition shall not include, and this chapter does not apply to, any individual who is not licensed under this chapter who acts as personal surety in instances where there is no compensation charged or received for such service.
- 5. Soliciting Bail Agent: any person who as an agent or employee of a professional bail agent, or as an independent contractor, for compensation or otherwise, shall solicit, advertise or actively seek bail bond business for or on behalf of a professional bail agent and who assists the professional bail agent in presenting the defendant in court when required or assists in the apprehension and surrender of the defendant to the court or keeps the defendant under necessary surveillance.
- 6. Bail Enforcement Agent: a person who assists the professional bail agent in presenting the defendant in court when required, or who assists in the apprehension and surrender of the defendant to the court or who keeps the defendant under necessary surveillance. Nothing herein shall affect the right of professional bail agents to have counselor to ask assistance of law enforcement officers.
- 7. Limited Surety Agent: any individual who is appointed by an insurer by power of attorney to execute or countersign bail bonds in connection with judicial proceedings, and who is duly licensed by the Commissioner to represent such insurer for the restricted lines of bail, fidelity and surety, after successfully completing a limited examination by the department for the restricted lines of business.
- 8. Personal Surety Agent: any individual who, having posted the necessary qualification bond with the Commissioner as required by Section 83-39-7, and duly licensed by the Commissioner, may execute and sign bail bonds in connection with judicial proceedings. All new personal surety agents licensed after July 1, 1994, shall complete successfully a limited examination by the Department for the restricted lines of business.
- 9. Surety: the insurer or the personal surety agent guaranteeing the bail bond and for the purpose of process does not mean the agent of such Insurer or personal surety agent.
- 10. Bail: the use of money, property or other security to cause the release of a defendant from custody and secure the appearance of a defendant in criminal court proceedings, or the monitoring or supervision of defendants who are released from custody on recognizance, parole or probation, except when such monitoring or supervision is conducted after conviction, sentencing or other adjudication and solely by public employees.

§ 83-39-3 - Individual license required

- 1. No person shall act in the capacity of Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent, as defined in Section 83-39-1, or perform any of the functions, duties or powers of the same unless that person shall be qualified and licensed as provided in this chapter. The terms of this chapter shall not apply to any automobile club or association, financial institution, insurance company or other organization or association or their employees who execute bail bonds on violations arising out of the use of a motor vehicle by their members, policyholders or borrowers when bail bond is not the principal benefit of membership, the policy of insurance or of a loan to such member, policyholder or borrower.
- 2. (a) No license shall be issued or renewed except in compliance with this chapter, and none shall be issued except to an individual. No firm, partnership, association or corporation, as such, shall be so licensed. No Professional Bail Agent shall operate under more than one (1) trade name. A Soliciting Bail Agent and Bail Enforcement Agent shall operate only under the Professional Bail Agent's name. No license shall be issued to or renewed for any person who has ever been convicted of a crime that the Commissioner finds directly relates to the duties and responsibilities of the business of a Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent, or a Bail Enforcement Agent, including, but not limited to, any felony that involves an act of fraud, dishonesty, or a breach of trust, or money laundering. No licenses shall be issued to any person who is under twenty-one (21) years of age. No person engaged as law enforcement or judicial official or attorney shall be licensed hereunder. A person who is employed in any capacity at any jail or corrections facility that houses state, county or municipal inmates who are or may be eligible for bail, whether the person is a public employee, independent contractor, or the employee of an independent contractor, may not be licensed under this section.
 - (b) (i) No person who is a relative of either a sworn state, county or municipal law enforcement official or judicial official, or an employee, independent contractor or the contractor's employee of any police department, sheriff's department, jail or corrections facility that houses or holds federal, state, county or municipal inmates who are or may be eligible for bail, shall write a bond in the county where the law enforcement entity or court in which the person's relative serves is located. "Relative" means a spouse, parent, grandparent, child, sister, brother, or a consanguineous aunt, uncle, niece or nephew. Violation of this prohibition shall result in license revocation.
 - (ii) No person licensed under this chapter shall act as a personal Surety Agent in the writing of bail during a period he or she is licensed as a Limited Surety Agent, as defined herein.
 - (iii) No person licensed under this chapter shall give legal advice or a legal opinion in any form.
- 3. The department is vested with the authority to enforce this chapter. The department may conduct investigations or request other state, county or local officials to conduct investigations and promulgate such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the enforcement of this chapter. The department may establish monetary fines and collect such fines as necessary for the enforcement of such rules and regulations. All fines collected shall be deposited in the Special Insurance Department Fund for the operation of that agency.
- 4. (a) Each license issued hereunder shall expire biannually on the last day of September, of each odd-numbered year, unless revoked or suspended prior thereto by the department, or upon notice served upon the Commissioner by the Insurer that the authority of a Limited Surety Agent to act for or on behalf of such Insurer had been terminated, or upon notice served upon the Commissioner that the authority of a Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent had been terminated by such Professional Bail Agent.
 - (b) A Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent may, upon termination by a Professional Bail Agent or upon his cessation of employment with a Professional Bail Agent, be relicensed without having to comply with the provisions of subsection (7)(a) and (b) of this section, if he has held a license in his respective license category within ninety

- (90) days of the new application, meets all other requirements set forth in Section 83-39-5 and subsection (7)(b) of this section, and notifies the previous Professional Bail Agent in writing that he is submitting an application for a new license.
- 5. The department shall prepare and deliver to each licensee a license showing the name, address and classification of the licensee, and shall certify that the person is a licensed Professional Bail Agent, being designated as a Personal Surety Agent or a Limited Surety Agent, a Soliciting Bail Agent or a Bail Enforcement Agent. In addition, the license, of a Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent, shall show the name of the Professional Bail Agent and any other information, as the Commissioner deems proper.
- 6. The Commissioner, after a hearing under Section 83-39-17, may refuse to issue a privilege license for a Soliciting Bail Agent to change from one (1) Professional Bail Agent to another if he owes any premium or debt to the Professional Bail Agent with whom he is currently licensed. The Commissioner, after a hearing under Section 83-39-17, shall refuse to issue a license for a Limited Surety Agent if he owes any premium or debt to an Insurer to which he has been appointed. If a license has been granted to a Limited Surety Agent or a Soliciting Bail Agent who owed any premium or debt to an Insurer or Professional Bail Agent, the Commissioner, after a hearing under Section 83-39-17, shall revoke the license.
- 7. (a) Before the issuance of any initial Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent license, the applicant shall submit proof of successful completion of forty (40) hours of prelicensing education approved by the Mississippi Insurance Department unless the applicant is currently licensed under this chapter on July 1, 2014 and maintained that license in compliance with the continuing education requirements of subsection (8) of this section.

Any applicant who has met all continuing education requirements as set forth in subsection (8) (a) of this section and has been properly licensed under this chapter within ninety (90) days of submitting an application for a different license type shall not be subject to the prelicensing education requirement.

(b) All applicants for a Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent, or Bail Enforcement Agent license applying for an original license after July 1, 2014, shall successfully complete a limited examination by the department of the restricted lines of business before the licenses can be issued; however, this examination requirement shall not apply to any licensed Bail Soliciting Agent and Bail Enforcement Agent transferring to another Professional Bail Agent license, any licensed Bail Soliciting Agent applying for a Bail Enforcement Agent license, and any licensed Bail Enforcement Agent applying for a Bail Soliciting Agent license. An applicant shall only be required to successfully complete the limited examination one.

Beginning on July 1, 2011, in order to assist the department in determining an applicant's suitability for a license under this chapter, the applicant shall submit a set of fingerprints with the submission of an application for license. The department shall forward the fingerprints to the Department of Public Safety for the purpose of conducting a criminal history record check. If no disqualifying record is identified at the state level the Department of Public Safety shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history record check. Fees related to the criminal history record check shall be paid by the applicant to the Commissioner and the monies from such fees shall be deposited in the special fund in the State Treasury designated as the "Insurance Department Fund."

- 8. (a) Before the renewal of the license of any Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent the applicant shall submit proof of successful completion of continuing education hours as follows:
 - (i) There shall be no continuing education required for the first licensure year of an original license.

- (ii) Except as provided in subparagraph (i), eight (8) hours of continuing education for each year or part of a year of the two-year license period, for a total of sixteen (16) hours per license period.
- (b) In an applicant for renewal failed to obtain the required eight (8) hours for each year of the license period during the actual license year in which the education was required to be obtained, the applicant shall not be eligible for a renewal license but shall be required to obtain an original license and be subject to the education requirements set forth in subsection (7). The Commissioner shall not be required to comply with Section 83-39-17 in denying an application for a renewal license under this paragraph (b).
- (c) The education hours required under this subsection (8) shall be approved by the Mississippi Insurance Department.
- (d) The continuing education requirements under this subsection (8) shall not be required for renewal of a bail Agent license for any applicant who is sixty-five(65) years of age and who has been licensed as a bail Agent for a continuous period of twenty (20)years immediately preceding the submission of the application as evidenced by submission of an affidavit, under oath, on a form prescribed by the department, signed by the licensee attesting to satisfaction of the age, licensing, and experience requirements of this paragraph (d).
- 9. No license as a Professional Bail Agent shall be issued unless the applicant has been duly licensed by the department as a Soliciting Bail Agent for a period of three (3) consecutive years immediately preceding the submission of the application. However, this subsection (9) shall not apply to any person who was licensed as a Professional Bail Agent before July 1, 2011.
- 10. A nonresident person may be licensed as a Professional Bail Agent, Bail Soliciting Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent if:
 - (a) The person's home state awards licenses to residents of this state on the same basis; and
 - (b) The person has satisfied all requirements set forth in this chapter.
- 11. On or before October 1, 2016, the Insurance Department shall establish a statewide Electronic Bondsmen Registry for all licenses, powers of appointment and powers of attorney requiring registration under this section. Once established, each Professional Bail Agent, Limited Surety Agent, Bail Soliciting Agent, Bail Enforcement Agent or insurance company writing bail bonds shall be required under this subsection (11) to register and maintain a record of each required license, power of appointment and Power of Attorney in the registry. Failure to comply with this provision will subject the Agent to the penalties provided in Section 83-39-29.

§ 83-39-7 - Qualification bond; return of Defendant out on bond

- 1. (a) Each applicant for a Professional Bail Agent license who acts as personal Surety shall be required to post a qualification bond in the amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000.00).
 - (b) The Insurance Department shall submit a report to the Senate and House of Representatives Committees on Accountability, Efficiency and Transparency that details the amount of all bonds or undertakings that each bail bondsman has written in this state on which the bail bondsman is absolutely or conditionally liable since the Bail Bond Database was established by the department. The report shall be submitted on or before December 1, 2017. The report shall also include the number of bail bondsmen who have failed to comply with the database reporting requirements, if any, the technical issues that may have occurred since the database was established and any

suggested legislation to ensure each bail bondsman's continued compliance with the database reporting requirements.

- 2. The qualification bond shall be made by depositing with the Commissioner the aforesaid amount of bonds of the United States, the State of Mississippi or any agency or subdivision thereof, or a certificate of deposit issued by an institution whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and made payable jointly to the owner and the Department of Insurance, or shall be written by an Insurer as defined in this chapter, shall meet the specifications as may be required and defined in this chapter, and shall meet such specifications as may be required and approved by the department. The bond shall be conditioned upon the full and prompt payment of any bail bond issued by such Professional Bail Agent into the court ordering the bond forfeited. The bond shall be to the people of the State of Mississippi in favor of any court of this state, whether municipal, justice, county, circuit, Supreme or other court.
- 3. If any bond issued by a Professional Bail Agent is declared forfeited and judgment entered thereon by a court of proper jurisdiction as authorized in Section 99-5-25, and the amount of the bond is not paid within ninety (90) days, that court shall order the department to declare the qualification bond of the Professional Bail Agent to be forfeited and the license revoked. If the bond was not forfeited correctly under Section 99-5-25, it shall be returned to the court as uncollectible. The department shall then order the Surety on the qualification bond to deposit with the court an amount equal to the amount of the bond issued by the Professional Bail Agent and declared forfeited by the court, or the amount of the qualification bond, whichever is the smaller amount. The department shall, after hearing held upon not less than ten (10) days' written notice, suspend the license of the Professional Bail Agent until such time as another qualification bond in the required amount is posted with the department. The revocation of the license of the Professional Bail Agent shall also serve to revoke the license of each Soliciting Bail Agent and Bail Enforcement Agent employed or used by such Professional Bail Agent. In the event of a final judgment of forfeiture of any bail bond written under the provisions of this chapter, the amount of money so forfeited by the final judgment of the proper court, less all accrued court costs and excluding any interest charges or attorney's fees, shall be refunded to the bail Agent or his insurance company upon proper showing to the court as to which is entitled to same, provided the Defendant in such cases is returned to the sheriff of the county to which the original bail bond was returnable within twelve (12) months of the date of such final judgment, or proof made of incarceration of the Defendant in another jurisdiction, and that a "Hold Order" has been placed upon the Defendant for return of the Defendant to the sheriff upon release from the other jurisdiction, the return to the sheriff to be the responsibility of the Professional Bail Agent, then the bond forfeiture shall be stayed and remission made upon petition to the court, in the amount found in the court's discretion to be just and proper. A bail Agent licensed under this chapter shall have a right to apply for and obtain from the proper court an extension of time delaying a final judgment of forfeiture if such bail Agent can satisfactorily establish to the court wherein such forfeiture is pending that the Defendant named in the bail bond is lawfully in custody outside of the State of Mississippi.
- 4. The qualification bond may be released by the department to the professional bail personal Surety Agent upon an order to release the qualification bond issued by a court of competent jurisdiction, or upon written request to the department by the professional bail personal Surety Agent no earlier than five (5) years after the expiration date of his last license.

§ 83-39-8 - Transfer of qualification bond

If a Professional Bail Agent who acts as a personal Surety Agent dies, the personal representative of the estate may contract with licensed Professional Bail Agents, Soliciting Bail Agents or Bail Enforcement Agents to assist him in managing and closing the business affairs of the Professional Bail Agent. The licensed Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent contracted by the personal representative may, on behalf of the personal representative, present Defendants in court when required, assist in the apprehension and surrender of Defendants to

the court, or keep Defendants under necessary surveillance. Nothing herein shall give the perso	nal representative the
authority to execute and sign bail bonds in connection with judicial proceedings.	

§ 83-39-9 - Issuance of license

The department upon receipt of the license application, the required fee, and proof of good moral character and, in the case of a Professional Bail Agent, an approved qualification bond in the required amount, shall issue to the applicant a license to do business as a Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent as the case may be. No licensed Professional Bail Agent shall have in his employ in the bail bond business any person who could not qualify for a license under this chapter, nor shall any licensed Professional Bail Agent have as a partner or associate in such business any person who could not so qualify.

§ 83-39-11 - License fees

Each license application and application for license renewal to engage in the business of Professional Bail Agent shall be accompanied by a fee of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00). Each license application and application for license renewal to engage in the business of Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent shall be accompanied by a fee of Forty Dollars (\$40.00).

§ 83-39-13 - Annual reports required

- 1. Each Professional Bail Agent licensed under this chapter, under oath, shall provide to the Insurance Department an annual financial statement. The annual financial statement shall show assets, liabilities and net worth as of the end of the most recent calendar year. The statement shall be submitted annually to the department by June 1.\
- 2. (a) For purposes of applicable examinations, a Professional Bail Agent licensed in this state shall maintain at least one (1) office physically located in any municipality or county in this state, to serve as his principal place of business operations where records pertaining to his bail Agent business conducted in Mississippi are maintained and this office location shall be registered with the Insurance Department.
 - (b) When applying for an original or renewal license as a Professional Bail Agent, the applicant shall indicate the address of the office location to serve as his principal place of business operations, and this address shall be evidenced on the face of the license issued to the licensee.
 - (c) If for any reason the Professional Bail Agent changes the location of his principal place of business operations, removes to another state, or no longer continues in the profession as a bail Agent, the bail Agent shall register the new location with the department, or notify the department of his removal from the state or his cessation of business as a Professional Bail Agent as appropriate.
- 3. On or before October 1, 2016, the Mississippi Insurance Department shall establish a Bail Bond Database within the department for the reporting of all bail bonds written by personal Surety Agents and Limited Surety Agents in this

state. By November 15, 2016, each bail Agent must input his or her bail bond information into the Bail Bond Database for all bonds written from and after October 1, 2016. By the fifteenth day of each subsequent month, each bail Agent must update the Bail Bond Database regarding his or her bail bond information for bail bonds written from and after October 1, 2016, and each update must be current through the last day of the previous month. Any bail Agent who fails to comply with the provisions of this subsection (3) shall be assessed a fine in an amount not to exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) per violation.

§ 83-39-15 - Grounds for denial, suspension, revocation, and refusal to renew license

- 1. The department may deny, suspend, revoke or refuse to renew, as may be appropriate, a license to engage in the business of Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent, or Bail Enforcement Agent for any of the following reasons:
 - (a) Any cause for which the issuance of the license would have been refused had it then existed and been known to the department.
 - (b) Failure to post a qualification bond in the required amount with the department during the period the person is engaged in the business within this state or, if the bond has been posted, the forfeiture or cancellation of the bond.
 - (c) Material misstatement, misrepresentation or fraud in obtaining the license.
 - (d) Willful failure to comply with, or willful violation of, any provision of this chapter or of any proper order, rule or regulation of the department or any court of this state.
 - (e) Conviction of felony or crime involving moral turpitude.
 - (f) Default in payment to the court should any bond issued by such bail Agent be forfeited by order of the court.
 - (g) Being elected or employed as a law enforcement or judicial official.
 - (h) Engaging in the practice of law.
 - (i) Writing a bond in violation of Section 83-39-3 (2) (b) (i) and (ii).
 - (j) Giving legal advice or a legal opinion in any form.
 - (k) Acting as or impersonating a bail Agent without a license
 - (I) Use of any other trade name than what is submitted on a license application to the department.
 - (m) Issuing a bail bond that contains information intended to mislead a court about the proper delivery by personal service or certified mail of a writ of scire facias, judgment Nisi or final judgment.
- 2. In addition to the grounds specified in subsection (1) of this section, the department shall be authorized to suspend the license, registration or permit of any person for being out of compliance with an order for support, as defined in Section 93-11-153. The procedure for suspension of a license, registration or permit for being out of compliance with an order for support, and the procedure for the reissuance or reinstatement of a license, registration or permit suspended for that purpose, and the payment of any fees for the reissuance or reinstatement of a license,

registration or permit suspended for that purpose, shall be governed by Section 93-11-157 or 93-11-163, as the case may be. If there is any conflict between any provision of Section 93-11-157 or 93-11-163 and any provision of this chapter, the provisions of Section 93-11-157 or 93-11-163, as the case may be, shall control.

3. In addition to the sanctions provided in this section, the department may assess an administrative fine in an amount not to exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) per violation. Such administrative fines shall be in addition to any criminal penalties assessed under Section 99-5-1.

§ 83-39-17 - Hearing

Before any license shall be refused or suspended or revoked, or the renewal thereof refused hereunder, the Commissioner shall give notice of his intention to do so, by registered mail, to the applicant or licensee and to the Insurer or Professional Bail Agent appointing or employing the applicant or licensee, as the case may be, and shall set a date, not less than twenty (20) days from the date of mailing the notice, when the applicant or licensee and a duly authorized representative of the Insurer or Professional Bail Agent may appear to be heard and produce evidence. In the conduct of the hearing, the Commissioner or any regular salaried employee specially designated by him for this purpose shall have power to administer oaths, to require the appearance of and examine any person under oath, and to require the production of books, records, or papers relevant to the inquiry upon his own initiative or upon the request of the applicant or licensee. Upon the termination of the hearing, findings shall be reduced to writing and, upon approval by the Commissioner, shall be filed in his office and notice of the findings sent by registered mail to the applicant or licensee and the Insurer or Professional Bail Agent concerned.

§ 83-39-19 - Appeals

Any person aggrieved by an act of the Commissioner under the provisions of this chapter may appeal therefrom, within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice thereof, to the circuit court of the county in which is located the domicile of said person by writ of certiorari, upon giving bond with the Surety or sureties and in such penalty as shall be approved by the circuit clerk of said county, conditioned that such appellant will pay all costs of the appeal in the event such appeal is not prosecuted successfully. The said circuit court shall have the opportunity and jurisdiction to hear said appeal and render its decision in regard thereto, either in term time or vacation time.

Actions taken by the Commissioner or department in suspending a license, registration or permit when required by Section 93-11-157 or 93-11-163 are not actions from which an appeal may be taken under this section. Any appeal of a suspension of a license, registration or permit that is required by Section 93-11-157 or 93-11-163 shall be taken in accordance with the appeal procedure specified in Section 93-11-157 or 93-11-163, as the case may be, rather than the procedure specified in this section.

§ 83-39-21 - Judicial proceeding in lieu of departmental hearing

The Commissioner, in his discretion, in lieu of the hearing provided for in Section 83-39-17, may file a petition to suspend or revoke any license authorized hereunder in a court of competent jurisdiction of the county or district in

which the alleged offense occurred. In such cases, subpoenas may be issued for witnesses, and mileage and witness fees paid by the Defendant, if found guilty. If costs cannot be made and collected from the Defendant, the costs shall be assessed against the qualification bond if the Defendant is a Professional Bail Agent, and if the Defendant is a Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent, against the employing Professional Bail Agent or his qualification bond.

Any court of competent jurisdiction within this state may suspend or revoke the license of any person licensed under this chapter for any of the following reasons:

- 1. Misappropriation, conversion or unlawful withholding of monies belonging to insured principals or others and received in the conduct of business under a license provided by this chapter.
- 2. Fraudulent or dishonest practices in the conduct of the business under a license provided by this chapter.
- 3. The commission of any act, which would prohibit or restrict the licensee from holding a license under this chapter.

The court, which suspends or revokes a license under the terms of this chapter, or the clerk thereof, shall promptly furnish the Commissioner a copy of the suspension or revocation order.

§ 83-39-23 - Notice to sheriff and judicial officials

No sheriff or other official shall accept bond from a Professional Bail Agent unless the bail Agent is licensed under this chapter and unless the bail Agent shall exhibit to the court a valid certificate or license issued by the department, and the license of the bail Agent shall not have been suspended or revoked. The department shall provide notice to the sheriff and municipal law enforcement and to the courts of every county and municipality of any suspension or revocation of a professional, soliciting or bail enforcement license. The department, upon request, may furnish to any sheriff, district, circuit, county or justice court Judge or municipal Judge additional information, which would appropriately identify the duly licensed Professional Bail Agent and Insurers whose operation is covered by this chapter.

 $\S~83-39-25$ - Maximum premium, commission or fee; processing fee; holding collateral to insure payment of premium or indemnify for losses

- 1. A Professional Bail Agent or his Agent shall charge and collect for his premium, commission, or fee an amount of ten percent (10%) of the amount of bail per bond posted by him, or One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00), whichever is greater, except on a bond on a Defendant who is charged with a capital offense, or on a Defendant who resides outside the State of Mississippi, in which case the premium, commission or fee shall be fifteen percent (15%) of the amount of bail, per bond posted by him, or One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00), whichever is greater.
- 2. A Professional Bail Agent or his Agent shall also charge an additional Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) processing fee on each bond issued by him.
- 3. Nothing herein shall prohibit a Professional Bail Agent or his Agent from holding collateral or taking a security interest in collateral for the purpose of insuring the payment of the premium of the bond posted or indemnifying the Professional Bail Agent for losses incurred due to a forfeiture of a bond or the costs of apprehension and surrender of the principal.

4.	Any fee charged by a Professional Bail Agent or his Agent for court-approved electronic monitoring or drug testing
	shall not be considered part of the premium, commission or fee charged under this section.

§ 83-39-27 - Prohibited activities

It is unlawful for a licensee to engage in any of the following activities:

- 1. Specify, suggest or advise the employment of any particular attorney to represent his principal.
- 2. Pay a fee or rebate or give or promise to give anything of value to a jailer, policeman, peace officer, clerk, deputy clerk, any other employee of any court, district attorney or any of his employees or any person who has power to arrest or to hold any person in custody.
- 3. Pay a fee or rebate or give anything of value to an attorney in bail bond matters, except in defense of any act on a bond, or as counsel to represent such bail Agent, his Agent or employees.
- 4. Pay a fee or rebate or give or promise to give anything of value to the person on whose bond he is Surety.
- 5. Pay a fee or rebate or give or promise to give anything of value to any person, other than a Soliciting Bail Agent, for the purpose of procuring a bail bond.
- 6. Accept anything of value from a person on whose bond he is Surety, or from others on behalf of such person, except the fee or premium on the bond, but the bail Agent may accept collateral security or other indemnity.
- 7. Coerce, suggest, aid and abet, offer promise of favor or threaten any person on whose bond he is Surety or offers to become Surety, to induce that person to commit any crime.
- 8. Give legal advice or a legal opinion in any form.
- 9. Refuse to return collateral security or other indemnity when the fee or premium on the bond has been fully paid or when the bail Agent's obligation on the bond has been terminated.

§ 83-39-29 - Penalties

- 1. The department may provide information to the district attorney in the district in which a Professional Bail Agent, a Soliciting Bail Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent is domiciled so that proper legal action may be pursued against any licensee who is alleged to have violated any provision of Chapter 39 of Title 83. Such licensee is guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one (1) year, or both. Any Insurer violating any provision of Chapter 39 of Title 83 may be fined in an amount not to exceed Fifty Thousand Dollar (\$50,000.00).
- 2. Any person or entity who acts or attempts to solicit, write or present a bail bond as a Professional Bail Agent, Soliciting Bail Agent, or Bail Enforcement Agent as defined in this chapter and who is not licensed under this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be subject to a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one (1) year, or both.

- 3. Any person who acts or attempts to act, represents himself to be, or impersonates a Professional Bail Agent, a Soliciting Bail Agent or a Bail Enforcement Agent as defined in this chapter by attempting to arrest or detaining any person and who is not licensed under this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be subject to a fine of not more than Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00), imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.
- 4. A bail Agent, Bail Soliciting Agent or Bail Enforcement Agent from another state shall report to the sheriff's department of the county in which he is attempting to locate a fugitive prior to looking for the fugitive to prove his licensing and legal right to the fugitive. Failure to prove licensing shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00).
- 5. Any person charged with a criminal violation who has obtained his release from custody by having a Professional Bail Agent, Insurer, Agent of a bail Agent or Insurer, or any person other than himself furnish his bail bond and who fails to appear in court, at the time and place ordered by the court, is guilty of "bond jumping" and, upon conviction, shall be subject to a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one (1) year, or both, and payment of restitution for reasonable expenses incurred returning the Defendant to court.
- 6. Any person who knowingly and intentionally aids and abets any person in the commission of the offense of bond jumping, whether the person committing the principal offense is actually convicted, shall be guilty of aiding and abetting bond jumping and, upon conviction, shall be subject to a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) or imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one (1) year, or both, and payment of restitution for reasonable expenses incurred in returning the Defendant to court. Any person who is convicted of aiding and abetting shall be jointly and severally liable for payment of restitution for reasonable expenses incurred in returning the Defendant to court.

7.	Any bail Agent who is prejudiced or injured by the commission of any of the offenses set forth in this section shall
	have standing to file a complaint alleging the commission of the offense or offenses.

§ 83-39-30 - Payment to inmates and their jailers prohibited

- 1. Any person licensed under this chapter who pays or gives anything of value, either directly or indirectly, to any law enforcement or judicial official or any employee of any facility where Defendants who are or may be eligible for bail are detained or may post bail for the purpose of enticing that official or employee to refer business in any manner to them shall be guilty of a felony subject to imprisonment for not more than five (5) years or a fine of not more than Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00), or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit bail Agent from making political contributions to persons running for public office.
- 2. Any person licensed under this chapter who pays or gives anything of value, either directly or indirectly, or who solicits another person to pay or give anything of value to any convicted inmate or trustee, regardless of whether they are held pretrial or post-conviction in any facility where Defendants who are or may be eligible for bail are detained or may post bail for the purpose of enticing that convicted inmate or trustee to refer business in any manner to them shall be guilty of a felony subject to imprisonment for not more than five (5) years or a fine of not more than Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00), or both.
- 3. Any person who is convicted under this section shall have their license permanently revoked and may not be involved in any bail business in any way.

SECTION 7. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after July 1, 2014.

 $\S~83-39-31$ - Fee on appearance bonds and recognizances; additional assessment on bail bonds to be deposited into victims of domestic violence fund

- 1. Upon every Defendant charged with a criminal offense who posts a cash bail bond, a Surety bail bond, a property bail bond or a guaranteed arrest bond certificate conditioned for his appearance at trial, there is imposed a fee equal to two percent (2%) of the face value of each bond or Twenty Dollars (\$20.00), whichever is greater, to be collected by the clerk of the court when the Defendant appears in court for final adjudication or at the time the Defendant posts cash bond unless subsection (4) applies.
- 2. Upon each Defendant charged with a criminal offense who is released on his own recognizance, who deposits his driver's license in lieu of bail, or who is released after arrest on written promise to appear, there is imposed a fee of Twenty Dollars (\$20.00) to be collected by the clerk of the court when the Defendant appears in court for final adjudication unless subsection (4) applies.
- 3. Upon each Defendant convicted of a criminal offense who appeals his conviction and posts a bond conditioned for his appearance, there is imposed a fee equal to two percent (2%) of the face value of each bond or Twenty Dollars (\$20.00), whichever is greater. If such Defendant is released on his own recognizance pending his appeal, there is imposed a fee of Twenty Dollars (\$20.00). The fee imposed by this subsection shall be imposed and shall be collected by the clerk of the court when the Defendant posts a bond unless subsection (4) applies.
- 4. If a Defendant is found to be not guilty or if the charges against a Defendant are dismissed, or if the prosecutor enters a nolle prosequi in the Defendant's case or retires the Defendant's case to the file, or if the Defendant's conviction is reversed on appeal, the fees imposed pursuant to subsections (1), (2) (3) and (7) shall not be imposed.
- 5. The State Auditor shall establish by regulation procedures providing for the timely collection, deposit, accounting and, where applicable, refund of the fees imposed by this section. The Auditor shall provide in the regulations for certification of eligibility for refunds and may require the Defendant seeking a refund to submit a verified copy of a court order or abstract by which the Defendant is entitled to a refund.
- 6. It shall be the duty of the clerk or any officer of the court authorized to take bonds or recognizances to promptly collect, at the time such bonds or recognizances are received or taken, all fees imposed pursuant to this section. In all cases, the clerk or officer of the court shall deposit all fees so collected with the State Treasurer, pursuant to appropriate procedures established by the State Auditor, for deposit into the State General Fund.

MISSISSIPPI CODE OF 1972 TITLE 99 CHAPTER 5 BAIL

SECTION: 99-5-1 Form of bail; professional and Soliciting Bail Agents to provide certain additional information; penalties 99-5-3 Form of Bail – taken in open court by entry on minutes 99-5-5 Bonds to be made payable to state; effect expiration and renewal 99-5-7 Fidelity or Surety insurance company may give bail 99-5-9 Cash bail bond 99-5-11 Justices of the peace may take recognizance or bond; certificate of default; alias warrant 99-5-13 Court may require additional bail Duty of officer to release Defendant from custody; approval of sureties 99-5-15 99-5-17 Sheriff to return bail-bond to clerk 99-5-19 Person who takes insufficient bail-bond, etc., to stand special bail 99-5-21 Bond good though it does not describe offense 99-5-23 Bonds, recognizance's, etc., to be valid and binding whether or not properly taken or recited in return of officer 99-5-25 Forfeiture of bond; Scire Facias 99-5-27 Sureties may arrest and surrender principal; return of Defendant out on bond 99-5-29 Surety may cause arrest of principal by officer 99-5-31 Mittimus in bailable cases to fix the bail 99-5-33 Accused committed to prison if injured party is dangerously wounded 99-5-35 When prisoner charged with capital offense entitled to bail 99-5-37 Domestic violence or knowing violation of domestic abuse protective order; required appearance before Judge; considerations; conditions 99-5-39 Appearance bond as condition of probation, community control, payment plan, or other court ordered supervision

§ 99-5-1 - Form of bail; professional and Soliciting Bail Agents to provide certain additional information; penalties

Bail may be taken in the following form:

State of Mississippi,		
County		
We, principal, and State of Mississippi term of the Circuit Court of until discharged by law, to answer a contract of	_ Dollars, unless the said County, and there rema	shall appear at the next
	Signed	
	Approved	

When the bail is for appearance before any committing court or a Judge, the form may be varied to suit the condition. When a bond is taken from a Professional Bail Agent, the following must be preprinted or stamped clearly and legibly on the bond form: full name of the Professional Bail Agent, Department of Insurance license number, full and correct legal address of the Professional Bail Agent and complete phone number of the Professional Bail Agent. In addition, if the bond is posted by a limited Surety Professional Bail Agent, the name of the Insurer, the legal address of the Insurer on file with the department and phone number of the Insurer must be preprinted or stamped, and a true and correct copy of an individual's Power of Attorney authorizing the Agent to post such bond shall be attached.

If the bond is taken from a Soliciting Bail Agent, the full name of the Soliciting Bail Agent and the license number of such Agent must be preprinted or stamped clearly and legibly along with all information required for a Professional Bail Agent and a true and correct copy of an individual's Power of Attorney authorizing such Soliciting Bail Agent to sign the name of the Professional Bail Agent.

Any Professional Bail Agent and/or Soliciting Bail Agents who issue a bail bond that does not contain this required information may have their license suspended up to six (6) months and/or be fined not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) for the first offense, may have their license suspended up to one (1) year and/or be fined not more than Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) for the second offense and shall have their license permanently revoked if they commit a third offense.

The court of the clerk of the court shall notify the department when any Professional Bail Agent or Soliciting Bail Agent or Insurer issues a bail bond that contains information that misleads a court about the proper delivery by personal service or certified mail of a writ of scire facias, judgment Nisi or final judgment.

$\S 99-5-3$ - Form of bail; taken in open court by entry on minutes

Bail taken in open court may be entered on the minutes as follows, to wit:

The State
No v.
A. B.
"Came the said A. B. and C. D. and E. F. and agreed to pay the state of Mississippi dollars, unless the said A. B. shall appear at the present term of this court, and remain from day to day, and from term to term until discharged by law, to answer a charge of

§ 99-5-5 - Bonds to be made payable to state; effect; expiration and renewal

All bonds and recognizance's taken for the appearance of any party, either as Defendant, prosecutor, or witness in any criminal proceeding or matter, shall be made payable to the state, and shall have the effect to bind the accused and his sureties on the bond or recognizance until the principal shall be discharged by due course of law, and shall be in full force, from term to term, for a period of three (3) years, except that a bond returnable to the Supreme Court shall be in full force for a period of five (5) years. If it is necessary to renew a bond, it shall be renewed without additional premium. At the end of the applicable period, a bond or recognizance that is not renewed shall expire and shall be uncollectible unless the collection process was started on or before the expiration date of such bond or recognizance. Any bond or recognizance taken prior to July 1, 1996, shall expire on July 1, 1999. If a Defendant is charged with multiple counts in one (1) warrant only one (1) bond shall be taken.

§ 99-5-7 - Fidelity or Surety insurance company may give bail

Bail may be given to the sheriff or officer holding the Defendant in custody, by a fidelity or Surety insurance company authorized to act as Surety within the State of Mississippi. Any such company may execute the undertaking as Surety by the hand of officer or attorney authorized thereto by a resolution of its board of directors, a certified copy of which, under its corporate seal, shall be on file with the clerk of the circuit court and the sheriff of the county, and such authority shall be deemed in full force and effect until revoked in writing by notice to said clerk and sheriff.

§ 99-5-9 - Cash bail bond

In addition to any type of bail allowed by statute, any committing court, in its discretion, may allow any Defendant, to whom bail is allowable, to deposit cash as bail bond in lieu of a Surety or property bail bond, by depositing such cash sum as the court may direct with the sheriff or officer having custody of Defendant, who shall receipt therefore and who shall forthwith deliver the said monies to the county treasurer, who shall receipt therefore in duplicate. The sheriff, or other officer, upon receipt of the county treasurer, shall forthwith deliver one (1) copy of such receipt to the committing court who shall then order the release of such Defendant.

The order of the court shall set forth the conditions upon which such cash bond is allowed and shall be determined to be the agreement upon which the bailee has agreed.

The sums received by the county treasurer shall be deposited by him in a special fund to be known as "Cash Bail Fund," and shall be received by him subject to the terms and conditions of the order of the court.

If the committing court authorizes bail by a cash deposit under subsection (1) of this section, but anyone authorized to release a criminal Defendant allows the deposit of an amount less than the full amount of the bail ordered by the court, the Defendant may post bail by a Professional Bail Agent in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the full amount fixed under subsection (1) or the amount of the actual deposit whichever is greater.

§ 99–5–11 – Justices of the peace may take recognizance or bond; certificate of default; alias warrant

All justices of the peace and all other conservators of the peace are authorized, whenever a person is brought before them charged with any offense not capital for which bail is allowed by law, to take the recognizance or bond of such person, with sufficient sureties, in such penalty as the justice or conservator of the peace may require, for his appearance before such justice or conservator for an examination of his case at some future day. And if the person thus recognized or thus giving bond, fail to appear at the appointed time, it shall be the duty of the justice or conservator to return the recognizance or bond, with his certificate of default, to the court having jurisdiction of the case, and a recovery may be had therein by scire facias, as in other cases of forfeiture. The justice or other conservator shall also issue an alias warrant for the defaulter.

§ 99-5-13 - Court may require additional bail

When it shall appear to the committing court or the court before which any person charged with a criminal offense has given bail to appear is insufficient or excessive in any respect, the court may (i) after a hearing, order the issuance of a revised mittimus reducing the previously set bail; or (ii) order the issuance of process for the arrest of such person, and may, after a hearing, require him to give bail as may be ordered, and, in default thereof, may commit him to jail as in other cases.

§ 9	9 - 5	5–15	– Dutv i	of officer	to release	Defendant fron	n custody:	approval	of	sureties
------------	-------	------	----------	------------	------------	----------------	------------	----------	----	----------

It is the duty of the sheriff or other officer having custody of such Defendant, upon his compliance with the order of the committing court or officer, to release him from custody; and he shall approve the sureties on the bond, except admitted and authorized fidelity and Surety insurance companies acting as Surety, and for that purpose may examine them on oath, or take their affidavit in writing, and may administer such oath.

§ 99-5-17 - Sheriff to return bail-bond to clerk

It is the duty of the sheriff taking a bail-bond to return the same to the clerk of the circuit court of the county in which the offense is alleged to have been committed on or before the first day of the next term thereof.

§ 99-5-19 - Person who takes insufficient bail-bond, etc., to stand special bail

If any person, except a properly authorized Judge, authorized to release a criminal Defendant neglects to take a bail bond, or if the bail bond from any cause is insufficient at the time he took and approved the same, on exceptions taken and filed before the close of the next term, after the same should have been returned, and upon reasonable notice thereof to the person, he shall stand as special bail, and judgment shall be rendered against him as such, except when bond is tendered by fidelity or insurance company or Professional Bail Agent or its bail Agent authorized by Mississippi state license act as bail Surety. The person taking and approving a bail bond from a fidelity or insurance company or Professional Bail Agent or its bail Agent with a valid Mississippi state license shall bear no financial liability on the bail bond in the event of a bail bond forfeiture or default.

§ 99-5-21 - Bond good though it does not describe offense

All bonds and recognizances taken in criminal cases, whether they describe the offense actually committed or not, shall have the effect to hold the party bound thereby to answer to such offense as he may have actually committed, and shall be valid for that purpose until he be discharged by the court.

 \S 99-5-23 - Bonds, recognizances, etc., to be valid and binding whether or not properly taken or recited in return of officer

All bonds, recognizance's, or acknowledgments of indebtedness, conditioned for the appearance of any party before any court or officer, in any state case or criminal proceeding, which shall have the effect to free such party from jail or legal custody of any sort, shall be valid and bind the party and sureties, according to the condition of such bond, recognizance, or acknowledgment, whether it was taken by the proper officer or under circumstances authorized by law or not, or whether the officer's return identify it or not. It shall not be an objection to any bail-bond or recognizance that it is in the form of an acknowledgment before a court or officer and is without the signature of any person, or is without

the endorsement of approval by any officer; but all persons who, by their acknowledgment before any officer of liability to pay a sum of money to the state if some person shall not appear before some court or officer in a criminal prosecution, procure the discharge from custody of such person, shall be bound accordingly upon the recognizance. An obligation signed by a person to obtain the discharge from custody of another shall not be invalid, if it have that effect, because it does not have endorsed on it the approval.

§ 99-5-25 - Forfeiture of bond; scire facias

- 1. (a) The purpose of bail is to guarantee appearance and a bail bond shall not be forfeited for any other reason.
 - (b) If a Defendant in any criminal case, proceeding or matter fails to appear for any proceeding as ordered by the court, then the court shall order the bail forfeited and a judgment Nisi and a bench warrant issued at the time of nonappearance. The clerk of the court shall notify the Surety of the forfeiture by writ of scire facias, with a copy of the judgment Nisi and bench warrant attached thereto, within ten (10) working days of such order of judgment Nisi either by personal service or by certified mail. Failure of the clerk to provide the required notice within ten (10) working days shall constitute prima facie evidence that the order should be set aside. Any felony warrant issued by a court for nonappearance shall be put on the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) until the Defendant is returned to custody.
 - (c) The judgment Nisi shall be returnable for ninety (90) days from the date of issuance. If during such period the Defendant appears before the court, or is arrested and surrendered, then the judgment Nisi shall be set aside and a copy of the judgment that is set aside shall be served on the Surety by personal service or certified mail. If the Surety produces the Defendant or provides to the court reasonable mitigating circumstances upon such showing, then the forfeiture shall not be made final. If the forfeiture is made final, a copy of the final judgment shall be served on the Surety within ten (10) working days by either personal service or certified mail. Reasonable mitigating circumstances shall be that the Defendant is incarcerated in another jurisdiction, that the Defendant is hospitalized under a doctor's care, that the Defendant is in a recognized drug rehabilitation program, that the Defendant has been placed in a witness protection program and it shall be the duty of any such agency placing such Defendant into a witness protection program to notify the court and the court to notify the Surety, or any other reason justifiable to the court.
 - (d) Execution upon the final judgment shall be automatically stayed for ninety (90) days from the date of entry of the final judgment. If, at any time before execution of the final judgment, the Defendant appears in court either voluntarily or in custody after surrender or arrest, the court shall on its own motion direct that the forfeiture be set aside and the bond exonerated as of the date the Defendant first appeared in court.
- 2. If a final judgment is entered against a Surety licensed by the Department of Insurance and has not been set aside after ninety (90) days, or later if such time is extended by the court issuing the judgment Nisi, then the court shall order the department to revoke the authority of the Surety to write bail bonds. The Commissioner shall, upon notice of the court, notify the Surety within five (5) working days of receipt of revocation. If after ten (10) working days of such notification the revocation order has not been set aside by the court, then the Commissioner shall revoke the authority of the Surety and all Agents of the Surety and shall notify the sheriff of every county of such revocation.
- 3. If within eighteen (18) months of the date of the final forfeiture the Defendant appears for court, is arrested or surrendered to the court, or if the Defendant is found to be incarcerated in another jurisdiction and a hold order placed on the Defendant, then the amount of bail, less reasonable extradition cost, excluding attorney fees, shall be refunded by the court upon application by the Surety.

§ 99-5-27 - Sureties may arrest and surrender principal; return of Defendant out on bond

- 1. (a)"Surrender" means the delivery of the Defendant, principal on bond, physically to the sheriff or chief of police or in his absence, his jailer, and it is the duty of the sheriff or chief of police, or his jailer, to accept the surrender of the principal when presented and such act is complete upon the execution of verbal or written surrender notice presented by a bail agent and shall relieve the bail agent of liability on the principal's bond.
 - (b) A bail agent may surrender the principal if the principal is found to be detained on another charge. If the principal is found incarcerated in another jurisdiction, the bail agent may surrender him by verbal or written notice of surrender to the sheriff or chief of police, or his jailer, of that jurisdiction and the notice of surrender shall act as a "Hold Order" and upon presentation of written surrender notice to the court of proper jurisdiction, the court shall order a "Hold Order" placed on the principal for the court and shall relieve the bail agent of liability on the principal's bond, with the provision that, upon release from incarceration in the other jurisdiction, return of the principal to the sheriff shall be the responsibility of the bail agent. The bail agent shall satisfy the responsibility to return a principal held by a "Hold Order" in another jurisdiction upon release from the other jurisdiction either by personally returning the principal to the sheriff at no cost to the county or, where the other jurisdiction will not release the principal to any person other than a law enforcement officer, by reimbursing to the county the reasonable cost of the return of the principal, not to exceed the cost that would be entailed if the first option were available.
 - (c) The surrender of the principal by the bail agent, within the time period provided in Section 99-5-25, shall serve to discharge the bail agent's liability to the State of Mississippi and any of its courts; but if this is done after forfeiture of the bond or recognizance, the court shall set aside the judgment Nisi or final judgment upon filing of surrender notice by the bail agent.
- 2. (a) A bail agent, at any time, may surrender the principal to any law enforcement agency or in open court in discharge of the bail agent's liability on the principal's bond if the law enforcement agency that was involved in setting the original bond approves of such surrender, to the State of Mississippi and any of its courts and at any time may arrest and transport its principal anywhere or may authorize another to do so, may be assisted by any law enforcement agency or its agents anywhere upon request of bail and may receive any information available to law enforcement or the courts pertaining to the principal for the purpose of safe surrender or for any reasonable cause in order to safely return the principal to the custody of law enforcement and the court.
 - (b) A bail agent, at any time, may arrest its principal anywhere or authorize another to do so for the purpose of surrender of the principal on bail bond. Failure of the sheriff or chief of police or his jailer, any law enforcement agency or its agents or the court to accept surrender by a bail agent shall relieve the bail agent of any liability on the principal's bond, and the bond shall be void.
- 3. A bail agent, at any time, upon request by the Defendant or others on behalf of the Defendant, may privately interview the Defendant to obtain information to help with surrender before posting any bail bond on behalf of the Defendant. All licensed bail agents shall have equal access to jails or detention facilities for the purpose of such interviews, the posting of bail bonds and the surrender of the principal.
- 4. Upon surrender, the court, after full review of the Defendant and the pending charges, in open court, may discharge the prisoner on his giving new bail, but if he does not give new bail, he shall be detained in jail.

s 99-	-5 - 29	- Surety	/ mav	cause	arrest	o f	princin	oal by	officer /
-------	---------	----------	-------	-------	--------	-----	---------	--------	-----------

The sheriff or a constable in a proper case, upon the request of a Surety in any bond or recognizance, and tender of the legal fee for executing a capias in a criminal case, and the production of a certified copy of the bond of recognizance, shall arrest, within his county, the principal in the bond or recognizance. The Surety or his Agent shall accompany the officer to receive the person.

§ 99-5-31 - Mittimus in bailable cases to fix the bail

When a Defendant charged with a criminal offense shall be committed to jail by a court, Judge, justice or other officer, for default in not giving bail, it is the duty of such court or officer to state in the Mittimus the nature of the offense, the county where committed, the amount of bail, and number of sureties required, and to direct the sheriff of the county where such party is ordered to be confined to release him, on his entering into bond as required by the order of the court or committing officer; and this shall apply to a case where, on habeas corpus, an order for bail may be made.

§ 99-5-33 - Accused committed to prison if injured party is dangerously wounded

If a person be dangerously wounded the party accused shall be committed to prison until it be known whether the person wounded will recover or not, unless it appear to the court of inquiry that the case, in any event, would not amount to murder; in which case, or in the event that the person wounded do or will recover, the accused shall be dealt with as in other cases.

§ 99-5-35 - When prisoner charged with capital offense entitled to bail

Any person having been twice tried on an indictment charging a capital offense, wherein each trial has resulted in a failure of the jury to agree upon his guilt or innocence, shall be entitled to bail in an amount to be set by the court.

§ 99-5-37 - Domestic violence or knowing violation of domestic abuse protective order; required appearance before judge; considerations; conditions

In any arrest for a misdemeanor, which is an act of domestic violence, as defined in Section 97-3-7, or for a knowing violation of a domestic abuse protective order issued pursuant to Section 93-21-1 et seq., no bail shall be granted until the person arrested has appeared before a Judge of the court of competent jurisdiction. The Defendant shall be brought before a Judge at the first reasonable opportunity, not to exceed twenty-four (24) hours from the time of the arrest. In calculating the twenty-four (24) hours, weekends and holidays shall be included. The appearance may be by telephone. Upon setting bail in any case involving a misdemeanor which is an act of domestic violence or a knowing violation of a domestic abuse protective order, the Judge shall give particular consideration to the exigencies of the case, including, but not limited to, (a) the potential for further violence, (b) the past history, if any, of violence between the Defendant

and alleged victim, (c) the level of violence of the instant offense, (d) any threats of further violence and (e) the
existence of a domestic violence protection order prohibiting the Defendant from engaging in abusive behavior, and
shall impose any specific conditions as he or she may deem necessary. Specific conditions which may be imposed by the
Judge may include, but are not limited to, the issuance of an order prohibiting the Defendant from contacting the
alleged victim prior to trial, prohibiting the Defendant from abusing or threatening the alleged victim or requiring
Defendant to refrain from drug or alcohol use. All such orders shall be reduced to writing and a certified copy of any
such order shall be provided at no cost to the arrested person upon his or her release, to the appropriate law
enforcement agency, and to the victim of the alleged crime.

§ 99-5-39 - Appearance bond as condition of probation, community control, payment plan, or other court ordered supervision

- As a condition of any probation, community control, payment plan for any fine imposed or any other court ordered supervision, the court may order the posting of a bond to secure the appearance of the defendant at any subsequent court proceeding or to otherwise enforce the orders of the court. The appearance bond shall be filed by a duly licensed professional bail agent with the court or with the sheriff who shall provide a copy to the clerk of court.
- 2. The court may issue an order sua sponte or upon notice by the clerk or the probation officer that the person has violated the terms of probation, community control, court ordered supervision or other applicable court order to produce the Defendant. The court or the clerk of the court shall give the bail agent a minimum of a seventy-two-hour notice to have the defendant before the court. If the bail agent fails to produce the defendant in court or to the sheriff at the time noticed by the court or the clerk of court, the bond shall be forfeited according to the procedures set forth in Section 99-5-25. The defendant's failure to appear shall be the sole grounds for forfeiture of the appearance bond.
- 3. The provisions of Sections 83-39-1 et seq. and 99-5-1 et seq. shall govern the relationship between the parties except where they are inconsistent with this section.

SECTION 7: MS Code (Section 21–23–8) - Municipal Bond Forfeitures

MISSISSIPPI CODE of 1972 TITLE 21 CHAPTER 23 SECTION 8 – MUNICIPALITY BOND FORFEITURES

§ 21-23-8 Municipality bond forfeitures

- 1. (a) The purpose of bail is to guarantee appearance and a bail bond shall not be forfeited for any other reason.
 - (b) (i) If a Defendant in any criminal case, proceeding or matter fails to appear for any proceeding as ordered by the municipal court, then the court shall order the bail forfeited and a judgment Nisi and a bench warrant issued at the time of nonappearance. The clerk of the municipal court shall notify the Surety of the forfeiture by writ of scire facias, with a copy of the judgment Nisi and bench warrant attached thereto, within ten (10) working days of such order of judgment Nisi either by personal service or by certified mail. Failure of the clerk to provide the required notice within ten (10) working days shall constitute prima facie evidence that the order should be set aside.
 - (ii) 1. The judgment Nisi shall be returnable for ninety (90) days from the date of issuance. If during that period the Defendant appears before the municipal court, or is arrested and surrendered, then the judgment Nisi shall be set aside. If the Surety produces the Defendant or provides to the municipal court reasonable mitigating circumstances upon such showing, then the forfeiture shall not be made final. If the forfeiture is made final, a copy of the final judgment shall be served on the Surety within ten (10) working days by either personal service or certified mail.
 - 2. Reasonable mitigating circumstances shall be that the Defendant is incarcerated in another jurisdiction, that the Defendant is hospitalized under a doctor's care, that the Defendant is in a recognized drug rehabilitation program, that the Defendant has been placed in a witness protection program, in which case it shall be the duty of any agency placing the Defendant into a witness protection program to notify the municipal court and the municipal court to notify the Surety, or any other reason justifiable to the municipal court.
- 2. If a final judgment is entered against a Surety licensed by the Department of Insurance and has not been set aside after ninety (90) days, or later if such time is extended by the municipal court issuing the judgment Nisi, then the municipal court shall order the department to revoke the authority of the Surety to write bail bonds. The Commissioner of Insurance shall, upon notice of the municipal court, notify the Surety within five (5) working days of receipt of the order of revocation. If after ten (10) working days of the notification the revocation order has not been set aside by the municipal court, then the Commissioner shall revoke the authority of the Surety and all Agents of the Surety and shall notify the sheriff of every county of such revocation.
- 3. If within eighteen (18) months of the date of the final forfeiture the Defendant appears for Municipal court, is arrested or surrendered to the municipal court, or if the Defendant is found to be incarcerated in another jurisdiction and a hold order placed on the Defendant, then the amount of bail, less reasonable extradition cost, excluding attorney fees, shall be refunded by the municipal court upon application by the Surety.

- 4. (a) The municipal Judge shall set the amount of bail for persons charged with offenses in municipal court and may approve the bond or recognizance therefor.
 - (b) In instances where the municipal Judge is unavailable and has not provided a bail schedule or otherwise provided for the setting of bail, it is lawful for any officer or officers designated by order of the municipal Judge to take bond, cash, property or recognizance, with or without sureties, in a sum to be determined by the officer, payable to the municipality and conditioned for the appearance of the person on the return day and time of the writ before the court to which the warrant is returnable, or in cases of arrest without a warrant, on the day and time set by the court or officer for arraignment, and there remain from day to day and term to term until discharged.
 - (c) All bonds shall be promptly returned to the court, together with any cash deposited, and be filed and proceeded on by the court in a case of forfeiture. The chief of the municipal police or a police officer or officers designated by order of the municipal Judge may approve bonds or recognizances.
 - (d) All bonds and recognizances in municipal court where the municipal court shall have the jurisdiction to hear and determine the case may be made payable to the municipality and shall have the effect to bind the principal and any sureties on the bond or recognizance until they shall be discharged by due course of law without renewal.

Appendix I: COURT DOCUMENTS

Click **HERE** to access fillable PDF versions of all court document forms directly from our website.

The following forms are contained in Appendix I:

- Final Judgement Nisi
- Order Setting Aside Final Judgement Nisi
- Revocation Order (Limited Surety Insurance)
- Revocation Order (Personal Surety)
- Scire Facias on Forfeited Bail Bond

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPI	PI		
VS.		CAUSE NUMBER:	
	<u>FINAL JU</u>	IDGEMENT NISI	
This cause ca	me on to be heard on the Judgmen	t Nisi heretofore entered herein upo	n which a Scire Facias was
issued, commanding	that	, license numb	oer,
as Surety, show cause	e why said Judgment Nisi shall not b	e made absolute and final execution	issued thereon and it
appeared that		, Surety, had been duly a	nd properly served with said
		came not, nor produced the body of	
it was required to do	and is wholly in default upon said J	udgment Nisi and therefore said Jud	gment Nisi should be made
final.	,		9
It is, therefor	e, considered and so ordered by thi	s Court that the State of Mississippi	does have and recovers
		, Surety, in the s	
for which let execution			
ior willow let execute			
SO, ORDERED	AND ADJUDGED, THIS THE I	DAY OF	
		JUDGE	
		1000L	

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
		CAUSE NOWIBER.	
VS.		POWER NUMBER:	
	ORDER SETTING ASI	DE FINAL JUDGEMENT NISI	
For proper reason s	shown to the Court herein, th	e Final Judgment Nisi previously enter	red on the day of
, ir	n the above-styled and number	ered cause for the charge of	
		on written bo	nd is hereby set aside and
		on said bond are e	
		erewith as said Surety/Sureties has pr	
proof that:	· ·		
,			
	SEE DOCUMENTATION A	ITACHED HERETO AS "EXHIBIT 1"	
	SEE DOCOMENTATION A	TIACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT I	
	•		
-		herewith be and hereby are taxed an	nd assessed against said
Defendant in the amount o	f		
SO ORDERED AND	ADJUDGED, this the da	y of	
REQUESTED BY:			
REQUESTED BY.			
		 JUDGE	
NAME:			
ADDRESS: CITY/STATE/ZIP:			
PHONE:			
REASON FOR SET ASIDE:			
ALAGON FOR SET ASIDE.			

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPI	PI		
VS.		CAUSE NUMBER:	
	ORDER OF REV	OCATION OF LICENSE	
THIS DAY this	s cause came on to be heard upon th	ne motion, ore tenus, of the State o	of Mississippi, by and through
the Office of the Distr	rict Attorney, pursuant to Section 83	-39-7 of the Mississippi Code of 19	72, as amended, seeking to
declare that the Final	Judgment against the Principal and	Sureties on the bond entered by th	ne Court of
	County, Mississippi, on the	day of,,	, in the above styled and
numbered cause agai	nst the Defendant,	, and I	Professional Bondsman,
	, License Number	, and the	e Insurer,
		, in the amount of	which is
currently outstanding	and further that the said	has not been paid	within the ninety (90) day
statutory period and	that the license of said Professional	Bondsman,	, License
Number	, should be revoked	d, and the Mississippi Insurance De	partment should take action
against the Insurer to	require payment of such bond, and	this Court being fully advised in all	the promises is of the
opinion that said mot	ion is well taken and should be sust	ained.	
IS IT THEREFO	ORE ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that	the License of Professional Bondsr	nan
	should be ar	nd is hereby revoked, and that the O	Commissioner of Insurance is
ordered and directed	to revoke the License of said Profes	sional Bondsman on file in his offic	e and that the License shall
remain revoked until	such time as the judgment of	is paid and tha	t the Professional Bondsman
shall not act as Surety	on any further bail or recognizance	, and that the Mississippi Insurance	e Department is ordered to
recover such judgmer	nt amount against the Insurer.		
SO, ORDERED	O AND ADJUDGED on this the	_ day of,,	- ÷
		JUDGE	

	COOK! OI	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI			
		CALICE NUMBED	
VS.		CAUSE NUMBER:	
	ORDER FOR REVOCATION	N OF THE QUALIFICATION BOND	
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
THIS DAY this o	cause came on to be heard upon t	he motion, ore tenus, of the State of	Mississippi, by and through
the Office of the Distric	ct Attorney, pursuant to Section 83	3-39-7 of the Mississippi Code of 197	2, as amended, seeking to
declare that the Final J	udgment against the Principal and	Sureties on the bond entered by the	Court of
	County, Mississippi, on the	day of,,	, in the above styled and
numbered cause again	st the Defendant,	, and Pr	rofessional Bondsman,
	, License Number	, in the ar	mount of
	which is currently outstanding	and further that the said	has not
been paid within the ni	inety (90) day statutory period, an	d that the Qualification Bond of said	Professional Bondsman,
	, License Number	, should b	e forfeited and the License
revoked, and this Cour	t being fully advised in all the pren	nises is of the opinion that said motic	on is well taken and should
be sustained.			
IT IS THEREFOR	RE ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that	t the Qualification Bond of Profession	nal Bondsman
	should be a	nd is hereby forfeited in the amount	of
	, and that the Commissioner of	Insurance is ordered and directed to	satisfy the same out of the
Qualification Bond on f	ile in his office, and that he should	further revoke the License of said P	rofessional Bondsman,
	, License Number	, to act as	Surety on any further bail
or recognizance.			
SO, ORDERED	AND ADJUDGED on this the	_ day of,	
		JUDGE	

SCIRE FACIAS ON FORFEITED BAIL BOND

THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI	
COURT	
TO ANY LAWFUL OFFICER OF THE STATE OF MIS	SSISSIPPI:
WHEREAS,	, Defendant and Principal, was bailed to appear in the
	County, Mississippi on the charge of
	and there attend from day to day until discharged by said Court
	, Sureties
on Defendant's said bond, being called to bring the l	body of said Defendant and Principal into Court, wholly failed; and
	y the said Court that the said County recover of and from the said n of, unless the severally appear in said
writ thereon to personally appear before said Court,M, in the Court of they can, why said judgment should not be made fin	nmons the said Defendant and/or his/her Sureties by service of this, on the day of,, at o'clock County, Mississippi to show sufficient cause, if any nal and failing thereunto or failing to deliver the said Defendant into e, the aforesaid judgment will be made final and will be proceeded
The officer's return of service is due 14 days from th	ne date of this writ.
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this the	day of,
COURT CLERK	(SEAL)
OFFICER'S RETURN:	
I have this day executed the within writ personally, b	by delivering the named respondent(s) by of this writ. This the day of,
OFFICER	_
OFFICER	

Appendix II - BAIL DOCUMENTS

Click **HERE** to access fillable PDF versions of all bail document forms directly from our website.

The following forms are contained in Appendix II:

- Application for Extension of Time to Delay Final Judgement
- Application for Remission of Bond
- Certificate of Surrender of Prisoner
- Certificate of Surrender of Prisoner in Foreign Jurisdiction
- Executing Weekly Report
- Order for Remission of Bond
- Order Granting Extension of Time to Delay Final Judgement
- Order Placing Hold on Principal/Defendant
- Order Satisfying and Cancelling Judgement Nisi
- Order Setting Aside Judgement Nisi Releasing Defendant and Recalling Warrant
- Order Setting Aside Judgement Nisi
- Transfer Bond Worksheet
- Waiver of Privacy Act

IN THE _	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF	MISSISSIPPI	CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.			
		POWER NUMBER:	
	APPLICATION FOR EXTENSIO	N OF TIME TO DELAY FINAL JUDGEN	<u>MENT</u>
Comes nov	N	_, Agent for	
Surety for	Defendant, and applies to the Court for an	Order Granting Extension of Time to De	lay Final Judgment as
approved l	by section 83-39-7, Mississippi Code, 1972,	as amended, and as supported therefor	e, would show the
following t	o wit:		
1	, Defer	dant in this Court on a charge of	
	fa	iled to appear for a noticed Court appea	arance on the day of
	, Pursuant to said defa	ault, Defendant's appearance bond in th	ne amount of
	was ordered forfeited by all pro	oper writes of Scire Facias and Judgmen	t Nisi and Bench Warrant.
2	, Agent	for	, Surety
for Def	fendant, has presented proof that the Defe	ndant is:	
	I Defendant have to be transported to this j		ssissippi, said Surety agrees
		REQUESTED BY:	
		NAME: ADDRESS: CITY/STATE/ZIP: PHONE:	

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBE	ER:
VS.			
		POWER NUMB	BER:
	APPLICATION FO	OR REMISSION OF BO	<u>IND</u>
Comes now		agent for	
for defendant, and applies t 25, Mississippi Code, 1972, a			amount as provided by Section 99-5- e following, to-wit:
1. Said bond was satisfied	in full by payment by	, in the sum of	, agent for on or about the day
of,	;		
			rendered to the y of
entitled to remissions of remissions of said bond	f said bond in the amount of should be made in the sum	or It is the of to:	is nerefore ordered and adjudged that
Agent		Surety	
Address			Phone
	SEE DOCUMENTATION A	ATTACHED HERETO AS "EXI	HIBIT 1".
THE DAY OF	·		
		RESPECTFULLY SUBM	AITTED,
		NAME: ADDRESS: CITY/STATE/ZIP:	
		PHONE:	

CERTIFICATE OF SURRENDER OF PRISONER IN FOREIGN JURISDICTION

CASE NUMBER:	
SHERIFF DEPARTMENT COUNTY OF	POLICE DEPARTMENT CITY OF
STATE	E OF MISSISSIPPI
	, hereinafter called defendant, charged with by indictment having delivered to me a
	dant, and I having thereupon taken in custody the said defendant,
do hereby certify and by this certificate acknowledge t	he has
surrendered the said defendant, and that said defenda	
THE DAY OF	
	DEPUTY SHERIFF/JAILOR/COURT CLERK
SURRENDERED BY:	
INSURANCE COMPANY:	
BOND POWER NUMBER:	
BOND AMOUNT:	
BOND DATE:	
REASON FOR SURRENDER:	

CERTIFICATE OF SURRENDER OF PRISONER

COUNTY OF	CITY OF
THE STA	TE OF MISSISSIPPI
	, hereinafter called the defendant charged having delivered to me a certified copy of
certify and by this certificate acknowledge that	g thereupon taken into custody the said defendant, do herebyhas surrendered y custody. This the day of,
NAME: TITLE: SHERIFF DOLICE DUDGE	☐ JAILOR
SURRENDERED BY: POWER NUMBER:	AND/OR:
BOND AMOUNT:	BOND DATE:

REASON FOR SURRENDER:

AUTHORITY FOR ARREST AND SURRENDER OF DEFENDANT BY SURETY: The Supreme Court of the United States, in the case of Taylor vs. Taintor, 16 Wall, 366, uses the following language, which has been quoted in the decision ever since. (The Sureties}", whoever they chose to do so may seize him/her and deliver him/her upon their discharge, and if this cannot be done at once, they may imprison him/her until it can be done. They may pursue him/her to another state; may arrest him/her on the Sabbath, and, if necessary, may break and enter his/her home for that purpose. The seizure is not made by virtue of new process. None is needed it is likened to the arrest by the sheriff of an escaping prisoner.

BOND JUMPING: MISSISSIPPI CODE 83-39-29 SECTION 5: Any person charged with a criminal violation who has obtained his/her release from custody by having professional bail agent, insurer, agent of such bail agent or insurer, or any person other than himself /herself furnish his bail bond and who fails to appear in court, at the time and place ordered by the court, is guilty of "bond jumping" and, upon conviction, shall be subjected to a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one (1) year, or both, and a payment of restitution of reasonable expenses incurred returning the defendant to court.

AIDING AND ABETTING: MISSISSIPPI CODE 89-39-29 SECTION 6: Any person who knowingly and intentionally aids and abets any person in the commission of the offense of bond jumping, whether the person committing the principal offense is actually convicted, shall be guilty of bond jumping to the same degree as the person so aided and abetted and shall be punished accordingly. Any person who is convicted of aiding and abetting shall be jointly and severally liable for payment of restitution of reasonable expenses incurred in returning the defendant to court.

	Agent Number: Agent Name:					
XECUTING	WEEKLY REPOR	<u>RT</u>				
Power Number	Defendant Name	Date	Liability	Prem	nium An	nount Owed
			EXECUTION RE	PORT TOTAL	S	
	YMENTS Defendant Name	Date	Amount Owed	Payment Amount	Balance Due	Next Due Date
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
		Date	Amount Owed		Balance Due	
Power Number		Date		Amount	Balance Due	Next Due Date
		Date	Amount Owed WEEKLY PAYM	Amount	Balance Due	
		Date		Amount	Balance Due	
		Date		Amount	Balance Due	

Date: _

IN	THE CO	OURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STA	ATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.				
		_	POWER NUMBER:	
		ORDER FOR REMIS	SION OF BOND	
This	day this cause came on to be he	eard on the application of _		, agent for
				er for remission of bond in such
	ount as provided by Section 99-5 s as follows:	-25, Mississippi Code, 1972	, as amended, and the co	ourt, having considered same,
1. 5	Said bond was satisfied in full pa	yment by		, agent for
-		in th	e sum of	on or about the day of
-	;			
				, surety
	for defendant has presented the	•		
-			on the day of _	·
	AS SHOW	N ON DOCUMENTATION	I ATTACHED TO APPLI	CATION
3		, agent for		is
	entitled to remissions of said bo			
ı	remissions of said bond should b	oe made in the sum of	to:	
-	Agent		Surety	
-	Address			Phone
SO, (ORDERED AND ADJUDGED, THIS	THE DAY OF		
				JUDGE

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.			
		POWER NUMBER:	
<u>ORI</u>	DER GRANTING EXTENSION	OF TIME TO DELAY FINAL JUDGEME	<u>NT</u>
This day this cause car	me to be heard on the applicat	ion of	
Surety for Defendant on a	final judgment nisi for default	of Defendant's appearance before this	Court an order granting
extension of time and the	reby delaying Order of Final Ju	dgment of forfeiture, and the Court hav	ing heard and
considered the same, find	s that:		
1	, Defendant in t	his Court on a charge of	
		ticed Court appearance on the da	
		arance bond in the amount of	
	ire Facias and Judgment Nisi ar		
2.	•	, Surety of Defendant has	presented the Court
		,	
			•
Should Defendant have to	be transported to this jurisdic	tion from outside the State of Mississipp	oi, and Surety agrees to
pay all costs of transporting	ng said Defendant to this jurisd	iction.	
The Surety is therefore en	titled to an extension of time k	pefore Order of Final Judgment.	
IT IS, THEREFORE	ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that	the Surety in this cause is granted an e	xtension until or on
about the day of	, befo	ore entry of Order of Revocation.	
SO OPDEDED ANI	O ADUINGED THIS THE	DAY OF	
30, ORDERED AINI	ADJOUGED, THIS THET	DAT OF	
SURETY		CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE	
NAME:			
ADDRESS: CITY/STATE/ZIP:			
PHONE:			

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.		POWER NUMBER:	
	ORDER PLACING HOLI	O ON PRINCIPAL/DEFENDANT	
Principal/Defendant due t therein and the Court beir	o the Notice of Surrender of sa	n by the Court to place a "Hold" on t aid Principal/Defendant filed by Bail is a finds that placing a "Hold" on said f	for the reason(s) stated
Principal/Defendant by the Principal/Defendant and p (or Designee) of the Coun taken into custody and tra	e legal authority, as stated in to prior to release from custody, to ty aforestated sufficiently prio punsported to the County Jail of	t a HOLD is hereby authorized to be he Notice of Surrender filed herein, whe releasing legal authority shall not r to said release to allow the said Pri the County aforestated for incarcera to any such order if the Court is una	who has custody of said ify this Court and the Sheriff ncipal/Defendant to be ation; and the Clerk of
by said Bail for and on bel	nalf of said Principal/Defendan	il is hereby released from liability as t, provided that, upon release from i criff of the County aforestated, shall	ncarceration in the foreign
foreign jurisdiction, upon i Principal/Defendant to the foreign jurisdiction will no Mississippi, by said Bail re Principal/Defendant, not t	release of the Principal/Defence Sheriff (of Designee) of the C t release Principal/Defendant in imbursing the County aforesta to exceed the cost that would be	return Principal/Defendant held on the dant from the foreign jurisdiction eith county aforestated at no cost to the sto any person other than a lawful off ted the reasonable cost of the return be entailed or incurred in Bail person signee) of the County aforestated.	her by personally returning said County or, where the ficer of the State of hof said
SO, ORDERED AN	D ADJUDGED, THIS THE	DAY OF,,	
			JUDGE
REASON FOR HOLD:			

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	_, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.			
		POWER NUMBER:	
	OPDED SATISEVING A	ND CANCELLING JUDGEMENT NISI	
	ORDER SATISFIING AI	ND CANCELLING JODGEWIENT WISI	
For proper reason s	shown to the Court herein,	the final judgement nisi previously entered on the	day of
	_ in the above-styled and n	numbered cause is hereby cancelled, said bond havir	ng been
satisfied in full payment of	by		
	AS SHOWN BY DOCUME	ENTATION ATTACHED AS "EXHIBIT 1"	
SO, ORDERED AND	ADJUDGED, THIS THE	_ DAY OF	
DECLISATED BY			
REQUESTED BY:			
NIADAE.		JUDGE	
NAME: ADDRESS:			
CITY/STATE/ZIP:			
PHONE:			

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.		POWER NUMBER:	
ORDER SETTI	NG ASIDE JUDGEMENT NISI	RELEASING DEFENDANT AND RECAL	LING WARRANT
		ement nisi previously entered on the	
		Defendant, said obligation approved an	
signature below, said p	ower number being	in the amount of	ordered and
adjudged that the judge	ement nisi be set aside, the Defo	endant released and recall the warrant o	on failure to appear this
the day of	·		
REQUESTED BY:			
NAME: ADDRESS: CITY/STATE/ZIP: PHONE:		JUDGE	

IN THE	COURT OF	COUNTY	, MISSISSIPPI
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		CAUSE NUMBER:	
VS.			
		POWER NUMBER:	
	ORDER SETTING	ASIDE JUDGEMENT NISI	
For proper reason :	shown to the Court herein, th	e judgement nisi previously entered o	on the day of
,	_ in the above-styled and nun	nbered cause for the charge of	
		et aside and	
		ged from further liability in connecti	
-	ted the Court with proof that:		
от ст, , ст. ст. ст. нас р. ссс	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
	SEE DOCUMENTATION A	TTACHED HERETO AS "EXHIBIT 1"	
	SEE DOCOMENTATION A	TIACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT I	
It is ordered by the	Court that cost in connection	herewith be and hereby are taxed a	nd assessed against said
Defendant in the amount o		Therewith be and hereby are taxed a	na assessea agamst sala
berendant in the amount o	······································		
SO OBDEDED AND	ADILIDGED THIS THE	NAV OE	
30, ORDERED AND	ADJUDGED, THIS THET	DAY OF,	
REQUESTED BY:			
REQUESTED DT.			
		 JUDGE	
NAME:			
ADDRESS:			
CITY/STATE/ZIP: PHONE:			
•			
REASON FOR SET ASIDE:			
NEASON FOR SET ASIDE.			

TRANSFER BOND WORKSHEET

DATE OF BOND:

AGENT FAX:

TODAY'S DATE:

AGENCY NAME:

AGENT PHONE:

BOND AMT(S):

PLEASE FAX THIS COMPLETED WORKSHEET TO:

AUTH REQ'D BY:

AGENT CELL:

AGENCY NO:

POWER NO(S):

Always follow your faxed Transfer Bond Worksheet with a phone call @

NAME: APPROVAL	. NO:	BY:	
ADDRESS:			
OCCUPATION:	AGE/DOB:		SSN:
CHARGES:			
ADDRESS:			
PRIOR CONVICTIONS: YES NO TRANSFER B	OND? YES	NO WHERE?	?
ATTORNEY: YES NO ATTORN	EY NAME:		
NUMBER ONE INDEMNITOR INFORM	MATION		COLLATERAL
NAME:			DEED OF TRUST
OCCUPATION:			PROMISSORY NOTE
ADDRESS:			INDEMNITY AGREEMENT
CITY/STATE/ZIP:			CASH
RELATIONSHIP:			CAR TITLE
COLLATERAL:			OTHER
VALUE: EQUITY:		LIEN(S):	
SOURCE:			
NUMBER TWO INDEMNITOR INFORT	MATION		COLLATERAL
NAME:			DEED OF TRUST
OCCUPATION:			PROMISSORY NOTE
ADDRESS:			INDEMNITY AGREEMENT
CITY/STATE/ZIP:			CASH
RELATIONSHIP:			CAR TITLE
COLLATERAL:			OTHER
VALUE: EQUITY:		LIEN(S):	
SOURCE:			
NUMBER THREE INDEMNITOR INFOR	MATION		COLLATERAL
NAME:			DEED OF TRUST
OCCUPATION:			PROMISSORY NOTE
ADDRESS:			INDEMNITY AGREEMENT
CITY/STATE/ZIP:			CASH
RELATIONSHIP:			CAR TITLE
COLLATERAL:			OTHER
VALUE: EQUITY:		LIEN(S):	
SOURCE:			
NOTES:			

WAIVER OF PRIVACY ACT

The Defendant hereby warrants that the foregoing declarations made and answers given are truth without reservations and are made for the purpose of inducing the Surety to become surety or to promote surety-ship on the bond or undertaking applied for herein, with the intent and purpose that they be fully relied on. In addition, the Defendant hereby authorizes and directs his relatives, employers, bankers, the Federal Social Security Administration, the Internal Revenue Service, the State Department of Disability Insurance, the United States Armed Forces, all telephone companies, the State Division of Motor Vehicles, all Municipal, County, State, and Federal Law Enforcement Agencies and any other persons or organizations having information concerning the Defendant's whereabouts to give such information to Professional Surety and it's assigns and/or dully appearance and/or apprehension for Court appearance and for the purpose of securing reimbursement for expenses incurred as a result on Defendant's non-appearance. The Defendant hereby waives his/her rights and with respect to the Privacy Act and authorizes the use of copies of this document by a Professional Surety and its assigns and/ or duly authorized representatives.

WAIVER OF INFORMATION

, ,	om any and all persons, entities or corporations; Defendant and
representative(s) any and all information or reports, education	onal records, employment records, court records, police or law
	ition records, etc., photo reproduction of this Authority, wherever and
whenever presented, shall have the same effect as the original	
By my signature hereon, I,	, authorize and direct my attorney in the cause for which
Surety is bonding me, to release any and all information in my	file deemed desirable by Surety to help locate me at any time Surety
shall request said information.	
X	
D	EFENDANT
\A/A!\/ED	OF EVERADITION
WAIVER	OF EXTRADITION
I of my own f	ree will and accord, to hereby voluntarily agree and consent to return
to the STATE OF MISSISSIPPI as a prisoner to answer to the cri	ree will and accord, to hereby voluntarily agree and consent to return minal charge(s) of:
	pending against me.
·	onsent to accompany the Bondsman or his agents or any authorized
·	d hereby release said representative(s) from any and all liability by
reason thereof.	
I have by state that I have road the above hand agree	ment and stinulations and agree to abide by same I also agree to
•	ment and stipulations and agree to abide by same. I also agree to round of this bond.
notify my bond agent in the event my address, phone number	or place of employment should change during the course of this bond.
X	
	EFENDANT

UNITED STATES COURT RULING

When bail is given, the principal is regarded as delivered to the custody of his sureties. Their dominion is a continuance of the original imprisonment. Whenever they choose to do so, they may seize him/her until it can be done. They may exercise their rights in person or by agent. They may pursue him in another state, may arrest on the Sabbath, and if necessary, may break and enter his house for the purpose. The seizure is not made by virtue of new process, none is needed. It is likened to the re-arrest by the Sheriff of an escaping prisoner.

Appendix III - POWERS OF ATTORNEY

See the following pages for examples of Power of Attorney documents.		

POWER FUSCA-1828948 RECEIPTION of S describering described critical freacht Copyrigh & Bryon, fed principle critical freacht Copyright Bryon, fed principle critical free cri
RECEIPT NO. of S der fellowing described cribble of freezist Copyrity & Bogdy, fed. (1995) by the trappe of matter fine actifying the file ofference. Said Cribbles or Receiving to the Selfy action as a print in fall to graph to adopt a matter of the form. (Deportune Serving)
of S destributing described critistens (result) Copyrigh & Brigdy, (ed. (1735) by the region of an ed file on fig.) by The effective Soil Collection of Tracking to the Soil Soil and on Tracking to the Soil Soil and on Copyright to the Soil Soil and on Copyright to the Soil Soil and the Soil Soil Soil and the Soil Soil Soil Soil Soil Soil Soil Soil
the fall eving described critistens [reach) Copyrigh & Bogdy, (ed. (173) by the topse of mat of this saying by Tiph Africa or Soid Critisand as 3 relating to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in the second of all white and print print for the extension of all
the fall eving described critistens [reach) Copyrigh & Bogdy, (ed. (173) by the topse of mat of this saying by Tiph Africa or Soid Critisand as 3 relating to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in the second of all white and print print for the extension of all
the fall eving described critistens [reach) Copyrigh & Bogdy, (ed. (173) by the topse of mat of this saying by Tiph Africa or Soid Critisand as 3 relating to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in full to graph to be \$650 men have print in the second of all white and print print for the extension of all
freestal Copyrigh & Brydy, fed (1713) by the tropic of mat of this section by Typ affective sec. Sold Collection of Brythery in her (6) mere have print in fed. to a graphic of his play jump have for self by here. [Quantin Sprint]
ant of this section is [15] the affective Soil Collamid to: In righting to heritage must be an initial in fail. In graphic of higher must be written of the farm. [Our order of the size of the farm.] Our order of the size of the farm and reaches of all.
ant of this section is [15] the affective Soil Collamid to: In righting to heritage must be an initial in fail. In graphic of higher must be written of the farm. [Our order of the size of the farm.] Our order of the size of the farm and reaches of all.
ant of this section is [15] the affective Soil Collamid to: In righting to heritage must be an initial in fail. In grantite of higher must be written of the farm. [Our order of the size of the farm of the fa
to gang the self-place with a self-accel by him. (Outporter Streeting) while and not a self-bird the actors and recells of all
the factors are stretch of the following with receipt of the
the factors are stretch of the following with receipt of the
party and the construction of the course of the sparty of the course of
write
(Parastro Carabas
(Departiti Species)
FONDR STABILIS
FCS25-18203-89
inare.
Billiand Program
Pateon Proper
MSBC. Charges
-
TOTAL Circus
Ls
. Handwel I'm Access
BALANTISDUS
DOB of SBA
Clieblate.
POWER NUMBER .
FG\$25-1923949
Tyle A 877.537.9245
ed expelling winder the look) of the State of Trades lookled Attorney in Park for it and in its cases.
Authority of each Attorney in Past is limited
itation, Elek, sestitation, paperents or promition,
Roods: 17th powerts vold (Colleged or errord : 5
Signification of the maximum stated 1 S
fred worself treatment to the resident for the first fred free free free free free free free
stosated of the conformatic The until 1 E.
disting was given.
Thy its daily authorized offices, paper for True Year yealers Congress.
A
Year E
yénten Cungci S
in theore

Action in some contract. Only the original Power of Missensy

THE POWER WOLD IF NOT USED BY A DESCRIPTION OF THE POWER WOLD IF NOT USED BY A DESCRIPTION OF THE POWER POWER PARTY.

MOTICA: Standing of Powers in stringly problems. He make then one.

POWER OF ATTORNEY
will blood this Survey. INTERNATIONAL FIDERITY INSURANCE COMPANY MARKET 153K-318059
INTERNATIONAL FIDERITY INSURANCE COMPANY MARKET 153K-318059

SPOWER WOLD IF NOT USED BY A Description of the Sulph State of the Sulph WALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, INSURANCE VIEW BROOKER COMPANY, STATE PRINTING THE BASE OF THE SULPH STATE OF THE BASE v Jersey, has constituted and appointed, and does hereby constitute and speakful its true and kraful Attenney-In-Fact, with full power and authority to sign the company's and affile in commode and in underlines to the left of a street any and all obligations as heady provided, and the examples of an underlined in the second shade a street of the second shade and shade a street of the second shade and shade as a street of the second shade as a street of the second shade and shade as a street of the second shade as a street of the shade as a street of the second shade as a street of the shad

no ray be executed for recognizance on criminal east sorte only.

fillority of such Afformay-in-Fact is limited to the execution of appearance bonds and count to be on studed to guarantee defendant's future lawful contitud, adherence to bravel titation, fines, restriction, payments or penalties, or any other our dition imposed by a court not specifically related to court appearances. A separate Power of Attornoy must effectived to each hand executed. Powers of Attempt must not be returned to Atterney-In-Fact, but should receiv a permanent part of the count records.

ord Amt \$	Date Exacuted		क्रमान्य विश्वता स्थान स्थान 	rafy swy bo waad	l te peal say san ball ea	ermel.
rendent	Vintrainne: Daille	COB	INSIMANCE CON Board of Directors.	(BANY, by viduo has calenced these set by its Chairm (23nd day of Mar	INTERNATIONAL PILE of authority conferes of presents to be sealed and of the Board and a rob, 1998.	t by its with its
urt-City 5	Tatal Premium Changer	(Sep)	<mark>.</mark> d answerps			
swrite, give usig, power if	C INVESTIGATES AND THE CONTRACT OF THE CONTRAC	increase Decrea		12025226	96	
		Andread to Anna Angelon of the Anna Angelon	Andrew State Control of the Control			
	YERIFY PEST - THE POLICE	UMBAR IS PRINTED IN 8	BLUE, NED A BLACK BAKS.			ni nternica
Inty the original Power of Albert will blind thin Stanty.	POW INTERNATIONAL	ER OF ATTOR FIDELITY INSUR MANUFACTURE AND ADDRESS TO THE MANUFACTURE AND ADDRESS TO THE MANUFACTURE AND ADDRESS TO THE MANUFACTURE AND ADDRESS TO THE ATTORNOOR ADDRESS TO	ANCE COMPANY	MORES.	IS6K-95773€	
S POWER VOIO IF NOT USE WALL MEN BY THESE PROSENTS ow Japsey, has constituted and appo-	DES DECEMBER 315 s, making and does have by constitute of tried, and does have by constitute of	2 2018 Sudstans Von Constant and process, its true end i	ANY, a California Institutiva (ANY, a California Institutiva (Ambil Attornia Institutionia Militaria (Ambil Attornia Institutionia (Ambil Attornia (Am	fidl powar and ea	uthority to sign the some:	an∀'s - Ó
e expl efficile commune scales and only shall a fundamining upon since proper pile of anticol sold control or commune	od vegan la belvete gyerety ery o glass (a d tilg) ero a ellent ero er gyresety og tas itter fremte a elle Gyresety og tas itterfrem og frem e	and elizabilgation, as he Bup residual de in sipe and winescopies (in 1921)	culp provided, and the exect If the PagaPorty stant of the Attotal (LT), Each man bases	arion of such abili and are such confi lik de alpe periodi	coffice in pursuance of 6 of yet to higher effice in then the auchiese by Villa	their and their
SIX THOUSAND# **	***********	********	"表方文化会会会			9
) WAY BE EXECUTED FOR RECA			dan da	antic Advance to a Aut	and at attended to be	j
ority of such Attorney-in-Pact is finite attor, fines, restitution, payments or p thechart to each local sevented. Pow	easities, or any other condition imp	osed by a court truit spe	cifically related to court app t aboutd remain a paimane	pearsurces. A sope of part of the coun	erets Power of Attorney to Leconsis	nust /
1.Amt \$	Date Excuted	·			rehibilied. No sann than- sast east use ball steach	
inclant	D/	OB	. Ensubance Compa	NY, by virtue of	ERMATIONAL FIDELS sufficiently conferred by	iie 🕺
s#	Agreematics Date: \$35		Board of Directors has Rodrights at U.S. Frod Local State Value of 23	caused these pro by its Chairman of day of Merch,	ssents to be sealed with of the Board and albed 1908.	les j
City 1	Total Premium Changed	=pt			1904 B	
utile, give orig. power if		reaso Docrease				

PARLONLY POWER AMOUNT 25566.65

RANKERS INSURANCE COMPANY 562169535 - 9 20, Box 57015 2 St. Pozinious, Planta 3373) * 860-627-0000

POWER OF ALTORNEY

Battisake@kimacyaPtriapalatCorp.nagri

RICOWALL MEN BY THESE BENSERYS: the Berker Insurance Company, a emposation duly against and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, has reade months to Article IV, Section II of the Ry-laws, which was addeded by the Directors of the said company, which was addeded by the Directors of the said company, which has an effect, does contained and existing and a said on the first and had a said of each, at said, it is a said to each and each, at said in a said to each and each, at said in a said to each and each, at said to each propagate back and each of the parameter of defined and Schewer lawful conduct, adherence to travel limitation; flues, realitations, parameter or penalties, or tarp other readition had each of a constitute of the said travel in the each of the said travel.

This Power of Attorney is four use with Boil Monds, only. Not valid if used in connection with Pederal Imagination Ponds. This power valid if altered of erased, void if used with other powers of this company is completely said the company, and if used to furnish had in excess of the state of the said fact analysis of this power of the only powers and can only be uned once.

The Object of Attorney is the power and can only be uned once. The said Attorney is also reported to have a fact the said to except a first to the said to be a said of the said of the said and a said to have a fact the said and according to the said to be a said of the said and according to the said to the said the said the said to the said and a said to have a said the said to the said and a said to have a said the said to the said and a said to have a said the said to the said and a said to have a said the said to the said and a said to have a said the said to the said and a said to have a said the said to the said

Ξ.	IN VALUEBUSS WHEREOF, DANKERS INSURANCE COMPANY has crossed these protected to be signed by the doly authorized delighed, proper
· : .	for the garpage and its comparate used to be insequente affixed this
	Bond Resount \$ Appendance Date at 100 2 to 2
٠,	DAPIKERS TOPS POPMANY
	AND THE PARTY OF T
	Dass # 1 th the state of the st
ěď.	[conf <u>_11 </u>
58	Office COP STORE, Providence
Eg.	
	if stepaths, Original d
_ :	#sicoconescipto
	MAIN CIPLE RATER THE HEART CIP COMPANY 555 193534 9 RESERVES ARRIPHMY POWER ARRIPHMY POWER FOR 33015 S. R. Petersking, Florida 3323 S. 800 627 0003 POWER CIP ATTORNEY RESERVES PRESERVES The Bankers beautiful Continuity of conversion only cape missled and scanning mades the boas of the state of Florida, has hard pursuant to definite IV. Section 11 of the Dy-Love, which was adopted by the Directors of the said company, and is now in effect, does son all the traps, and by these persons does traine, constitute and appoint to below manuel again the traps, and levels and the said company, and the said son and the said company, and the said configuration of the said company, and the said son that the said configuration is a state of the said company of the said configuration of the said company, and the said configuration of the said confi
ts.	had boul only Admin to girly, Attention of the initial to appear has burned the potent than the filed with the court dependent to appear and a potent than the filed with the court of promotions and the potent than the filed with the court of promotions only, of the named belondent. This perfect shall not obligate the survey for the Period and a fatter layful conduct, court hyperatures conditions, restrictions, or fines costs, restriction or spy other shall be control to control the processing the first process of the costs, restriction or spy
DECIMBER 31, 2018	This Power of Attorney is the new with Basi Reads for Shate, County and Mainichial Courts only. Not valid in Reciscul Court nor if used in connection with Vederal Immigration Bonds. This power shall be voted if its arriginal format has been altered, if it extends the arriginal format has been altered, if it extends the arriginal format has been altered, if it extends the arriginal format has been altered, it is extend the interpretable of the property of the arriginal format has been altered, and white an individual who is not suffered to extend surely bonds on helpelf of Bonkers insurance Complety. THE OPLIANTON OF THE COMPANY SEALL NOT EXCESS THE SUL OF THIS STATES FACT AMOUNT, AND PROVIDED THIS Fower of Arrest of the local with the bond and retrieved the continuously. The suid Alternay in this develop entherized to inest in this higher of Arrelins has have if the person on white which is the discount.
	IN VARIOUSE WITTERSON, KANGERS DUSTURANCE COMPANY spic coursed to the agency to be agency by the duly confibring a contract and government to the agency of the confibring and the confi
W NOT	dev of the promotes and the formation of the desired of the second of th
A CORDINA	Detection S Application Date: Detection Sure BANKS BA
	Chac#
8 8 8 8	Court
155	City
200	Orbinso Pull'y Corres AL. President

PAIL ONLY POWER AMOUNT

JOHN DOE d/b/a DOLLAR BAIL BOND COMPANY

100 EASY STREET. P.C. Box 100 Yesteriday, MS 39989 Office (801) 889-8988 Firx (801) 777-7777 V100-183135

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that John Doc d/b/a notific BAIL BOND COMPANY, is Professional Bail Agent, as licensed by the Commissioner of Insurance of Mississippi, License Number 9401032 does constitute and appoint the below agent its true and lawful officinely intest and is limited for him and in his nume, place and stead, to execute, seel and deliver for and on his behalf and as his act and depth, as surely, a bail bond only. Authority of each attempt library in limited to appearance bonds and cannot be construed to guarantee for failure to provide payugents, lines, or wage law claims on behalf of below named defendant.

This power is void if altered or crossed, void if used with other powers of this openpany or other powers of other companies to Limitsh ball in excess of this slatter face amount of this power, and can only be used once. The obligation of Debble Certifier shall not exceed the sum of the bond or

Executing Agent

Joh if not

BAIL ONLY POWER AMOUNT

JOHN DOE d/6/a DOLLAR BAIL BOND COMPANY

V25-183135

100 EASY \$1\ki-ET. P.O. Hox 100 Yeslandsy, MS 39989 Office (801) 589-8989 Fax (801) 777-7777 POWER OF ATTORNEY

NNOW ALL MEN BY THESH PRESENTS: that Join Doe dibla DOLLER BAIL BORD COMMANY, a Professional Box Agent, as illumed by the Commissioner of Insurance of Mississippi, License Number 9/10/14/32 does constitute and appoint the below named agent its true and lawful oftensy-infact and is limited for him and in his pane, place and stood, to execute, seal and deliver for and on his bohalf and as his act and deed, as surely, a bait bond any. Authority of such attorney-in-fact is limited to appearance bonds and cannot be constitued to guarantee for failure to provide payments, fines, or wage law claims on behalf of below named defendant.

	This power is void if altered or erased, stated tace amount of this power; and whichever is less, and provided this po	can only be used once. The congaron or	ipany or other power Debbie Cardner shall (25,000.00) DOUL/ retained as part of the elect this bond was u	e court records. The said attorney4n-fact is hereby Ivan
	thisday of	20		
J	Datendent			DOLLAR BAIL BOND COMPANY
ĭ 20 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	S.S.#	DOD		
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Court			DECEMBER OF A DAM ASSENT
可以数据接受效应	Offense Frewrite, Original fr	Stas	- 8	-

FINANCIAL CASUALTY & SURETY, INC.

No.66688

The Ball Insurance Company 3131 Eastside.#600 Houston, Texas 77098 877.737.2245 713,351,8401 FAX

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Valid in	County, State of Mississippi
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESEI That FINANCIAL CASUALTY & SUR State of TEXAS, hereby make, constit	ETY, INC., (hereinafter called Company) a corporation of the
its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full pot and deliver and affor the seal of the Compa consents of surety or other written obligations	ower and authority for and on behalf of the Company as surety, to execute my thereto, if a seal is required, on bonds, undertakings, recognizances, in the nature thereof, as follows:
Bail bonds (not including non-appearance rela	lod recognizancos/ball bonds)
not to exceed \$500,000.00 (Five Hus	ndred thousand dollars and no/cents) for each bond or defendant
these presents are hereby ratified and confirm	
qualid FiNANCIAL CASUALTY & SURETY, INC	NOT be liable hereunder unless face sheets and/or bonds are affixed to a
This appointment is made under and by authorized N WITNESS WHEREOF, FINANCIAL CAduly authorized officer this28thday of _Ju	ority of resolution of the Board of Directors of Financial Casualty & Surety, SUALTY & SURETY, INC. nas caused these presents to be signed by its
•	
Corporate Scal:	BY
×1	Kathloon M Ledbetter
	. Vice President
); · · ·	
STATE OF TEXAS SS	
COUNTY OF HARRIS 3	
On this <u>28th</u> day of <u>July 2007</u> , bet	ore me a notary public, the undersigned officer, personally appeared, Kathkern M Ledbetter, to the within instrument, and acknowledged that she executed the same for the purposes
therein contained. The whole scheme of Lineweiths set now be Mound official as Notary Public	produced and the second
Arry corresponden	ce regarding this Power of Atterney address to:
	VCIAL CASUALTY & SUREZY, INC.

P.O. Box 4479

Houston, Texas 77219-4479

This Qualitying Power of Altomey is NOT valid unless affixed with a pressure corporate seal and well signatures.

Description of their 10 on Description time and a sound

RETURN TO

Bankers Insurance Company P.O. Box 33015 St. Petersburg, Florida 33733

GENERAL QUALIFYING POWER OF ATTORNEY

Valid in State of	Mississippi			County only
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Bankers Insurance Company, a licensed Florida insurance carrier, having its principal office in the City of St. Petersburg, County of Pinellas, State of Florida, hereinafter called "Company".				
Has made, constituted and appointed and by these presents does make, constitute and appoint				
		of		
its true and lizwful agent and at only in a pountry sum not to exc			acrety, as its act and deed	I, Bail Bonds and recognizes
*FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAN	ID (3500,000.00)			
ALL BAIL DONDS AND RECOGNIZANCES MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY AN INDIVIDUAL NUMBERED POWER OF ATTORNEY PROPERLY EXECUTED, IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO OR IN EXCESS OF THE PARTICULAR BOND BRING ISSUED.				
And the execution of such honds or undertakings in pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon Company as fully and amply, to all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officials of the Company at its office in St. Petershurg. Florids, in their own proper persons.				
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bookers Corporate seal bereinto affixed,			hy its duly anthodized offic ember	2017
BANKERS INSURANCE COMPANY				
		By:	SNECK, SENIOR VIC	
		BRIAN RE	SNECK, SENIOR VICI	k kerzinini.
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF PINELLAS		2017		
On this 6" Florida, in and for the County of INSURANCE COMPANY, to insurancent, and the acknowledge said company aforesaid, and the Corporate Seal and his signature Corporation, and that the Asticle	me personally known to od the execution of the sa- nat the sent affixed to the e as officer duty affixed o	ioned and qualifies, came to the individual and offene, and being by me duly a proceeding instrument is and subscribed to the said.	Brian Kesneck, Senior V loar described in, and v sworn, deposed and said the Corporate Seal of a instrument by the unthor	who excented the preceding it that he is the officer of the aid Company, and the said ity and direction of the said
IN TESTIMONY WHEREO year first above written	OF, I have bereunto set in	y hand, and affixed my Ot	ficial Seal at the City of	St. Petersburg, the day and
Notary Public		Commission Expires	THE STATE OF THE S	NET II. 8

QUALIFYING POWER ONLY, NOT TO BE ATTACHED TO ANY BOND. VALUE ONLY IS AN INVOLVED, BY AN INDEREST OF ALTORNEY IS ATTACHED TO EACH BOND EXECUTED, DO NOT ACCEPT IN COPY.

Certified Copy OUALIFYING POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: The INTERNATIONAL PEDELITY INSURANCE COMPANY & New Jorday Compacions having its principal office, is the City of Newark, County of Essex, State of New Jersey, does hereby make consumit and appoint Mississippi with families suctionity, its true and Inwited Agout and Attacher in Fact, with full-power and authority hereby conferred to stan, execute, actalogytodies and deliver for aid on its nebult as Street, subject to the limitation as berein set forth, any use all papers and dominents accessary or incubental to the making of Ball Bonds in Judicial Proceedings, whether criminal or cost; supersociets bonds, peace bends, appeal bonds of any other bind of appealable bond in any state Court, County Court or Misticipal Court, suct in all U.S. Federal Courts and all U.S. Federal Agencies, but to exceed the amount of on any one bond ***Two Handred Fifty Thousand Dollars and 00(100 ****(250,000.00)**** PROVIDED INDIVIDUAL POWER OF ACCOUNTS BE ATTACHED IN PACT BOARD AND REMAIN A PERMANENT PAST OF THE COLET RECORDS. This sicknowledgement and execution of any such sequinant by the said Aborney-izeFact shall be as binding upon this Company as I such some this besit executed and seknowledged by the complurity elected officers of this Company. September 36, 2019 NTERNAL JONAL FIDELLY All probartly huggey conferred shall exper and equirate without notice at midnight on INSURANCE COMPANY further graft of the following is a top oned exact copy of a resolution of the Board of Deficient of INTERNATIONAL FIDELITY INSULANCE COMPANY, duly adopted shiftnow in lorge, to will All Bonds of the Corporation shall be executed in the engineers name of the Compline, by the President or Vice-President (as by such other officers as the Board of Directors may applicate. The President of Vice-President, Scoretary, or any Assistant Secretary may appoint Attorneys in Pact or agout who shall have authority to make thought the company. The Compense Seal is not necessary for the validity of my luxurs of the Corporation IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the god INTERNATIONAL FIDELITY INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these practits to September 7, 2017 QUALIFYING POWER ONLY, NOT TO HE ATTACHED TO ANY BOND. VALID ONLY IF INDIVIDUAL POWER OF ATTORNEY IS ATTACHED TO EACH BOND EXECUTED. DO NOT ACCEPT IF COPY. INTERNATIONAL FIDELITY INSURANCE COMPANY Norman H. Konvitz, Spence Lance Confly of CSSEX On the date above writtens before use a Notary Public, perspanily appeared NORMAN R. KONVITZ, who being by me didy sweat, acknowledged that be signed the above Power of Anomey as Secretify of the said INTERNATIONAL FIDELITY INSTRANCE COMPANY and administrated asin instrument to be the voluntary set and deed of said corporations. Angelo Francis NOVARY PURCIC Notary Public

RECEIPT AND REPORT OF USE OF POWER OF APPURISH INTERNATIONAL PIDELITY INSURANCE COMPANY

This manual has been prepared by:

MISSISSIPPI COALITION OF BAIL SURETIES, INC.

156 West Broad Street, Decatur MS 39327 PO Box 248

Phone: 877-771-2245 Fax: 601-635-4044

Email: mcobsinc@gmail.com

Website: mcobs.org

This manual and copies of all included documents may be found on our website under the Agent Resources section.